
WTRY Broadcast Schedule Regular Meetings, Wednesday, 6:00 p.m. and 11:00 p.m. Study Meetings, Wednesday, 3:00 p.m. 

 PLANNING COMMISSION 
 MEETING AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 

 
 

John J. Tagle, Chair, Donald Edmunds, Vice Chair 
Michael W. Hutson, Edward Kempen, Tom Krent, Philip Sanzica 

Gordon Schepke, Robert Schultz and Thomas Strat 

   

March 12, 2013 7:00 P.M. Council Chambers 
   

 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – February 12, 2013 Regular Meeting 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items Not on the Current Agenda 
 
 

POSTPONED ITEMS 
 
5. SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 400) – Proposed 

Starbucks/Qdoba Oakland Mall Outlot, Northwest Corner of John R and 14 Mile, Section 35, 
Currently Zoned GB (General Business) District 

 
6. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 979) – Proposed Galleria of Troy, 

North side of Big Beaver between Wilshire and I-75, Section 21, Currently Zoned BB (Big 
Beaver) District 

 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUESTS AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 
7. PUBLIC HEARING - SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number 

SU 401) – Proposed Midwest Industrial Metals Inc., 2222 Stephenson Highway, Section 26, 
Currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) District 

 
8. PUBLIC HEARING - SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number 

SU 399) – Proposed Detroit Meeting Room, North of Square Lake and I-75 Expressway, East 
of Adams, Section 6, Currently Zoned R1-A (One Family Residential) District 

 
9. PUBLIC HEARING - SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number 

SU 402) – Proposed Gypsum Supply Company, East side of John R, North of Fourteen Mile 
Road (651 Robbins), Section 36, Currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) 
District 

  

500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, MI  48084 
(248) 524-3364 
www.troymi.gov 

planning@troymi.gov 



TROY CITY PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA March 12, 2013 
 
 

WTRY Broadcast Schedule Regular Meetings, Wednesday, 6:00 p.m. and 11: 00 p.m.Study Meetings, Wednesday, 3:00 p.m. 
 

2 

 
ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 

 
10. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 245) – Sober Living Facilities 

 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

11. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items on Current Agenda 
 

12. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
NOTICE: People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at 

clerk@troymi.gov or by calling (248) 524-3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us


PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 12, 2013 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Tagle called the Regular meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order at 
7:00 p.m. on February 12, 2013 in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Donald Edmunds 
Edward Kempen 
Tom Krent 
Philip Sanzica 
Gordon Schepke 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
 
Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Eric Huang, Student Representative 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-02-009 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2013-02-010 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Schepke 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the January 22, 2013 Special/Study meeting as 
printed. 
 
Yes: Edmunds, Kempen, Krent, Sanzica, Schepke, Schultz, Tagle 
Abstain: Strat 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 12, 2013 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 

POSTPONED ITEM 
 
5. CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (File Number CR 008) – Proposed Tim 

Horton’s Café, Northwest Corner Square Lake and Dequindre, Section 1, From NN 
(Neighborhood Node “N”) to CB (Community Business) District 
 
Mr. Savidant informed the Planning Commission that the applicant requested 
postponement of this item in writing.  The applicant has an agreement to purchase the 
abutting property to the north of the subject parcel, and requested additional time to 
revise the site design and prepare a Traffic Study. 
 
No action was taken. 

 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File 

Number SU 400) – Proposed Starbucks/Qdoba Oakland Mall Outlot, Northwest Corner 
of John R and 14 Mile, Section 35, Currently Zoned GB (General Business) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle presented the report on the item. 
 
Jim Butler, Professional Engineering Associates, addressed items of concern listed in 
the report.  He indicated that the site plan would be revised to address all of the required 
items, including moving the building footprint forward to provide an additional required 
stacking space. 
 
There was general discussion on the item. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-02-011 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 

RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones the item to the next 
meeting or until such time that the applicant can put together an updated and complete 
site plan package. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 12, 2013 
  
 
 

3 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
7. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 979) – Proposed Galleria of Troy, 

North side of Big Beaver between Wilshire and I-75, Section 21, Currently Zoned BB (Big 
Beaver) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle presented the report on the item. 
 
Jim Butler, Civil Engineer from Professional Engineering Associates, addressed items of 
concern listed in the report. 
 
Scott Bowers, Architect from A², addressed architectural issues. 
 
There was general discussion on the item. 
 
Some members of the Planning Commission questioned the interpretation of the 
provision requiring the principal building to be set back a maximum of 30 feet from the 
right-of-way.  This was addressed by Mr. Savidant and Mr. Carlisle. 
 
Mr. Butler indicated the site could be redesigned so that it was compliant with the Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-02-012 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Krent 
 

RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones the item to the next 
meeting or until such time that the applicant can put together an updated and complete 
site plan package. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARING – CITY INITIATED REZONING APPLICATION (File Number Z 742) 

– Proposed 1071 Villa Park (part of Parcel Identification No. 88-20-02-301-010), East 
Side of Rochester Road, South of South Boulevard, Section 2, From R-1D (One Family 
Residential) District to RT (One Family Attached Residential) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented the report on the item. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 12, 2013 
  
 
 

4 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-02-013 
Moved by:  Edmunds 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that the R-1D to RT rezoning request, located on the east side of Rochester Road, 
south of South Boulevard (1071 Villa Park), in Section 2, being approximately 34.169 
acres in size, be approved for the following reasons: 
 
1. The rezoning is consistent with the City of Troy Master Plan. 
2. The rezoning is consistent with abutting zoning districts and land uses. 
3. The rezoning will eliminate the nonconforming use status of the subject property. 
4. The rezoning will correct an administrative error. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 
9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 245) – Sober Living 

Facility 
 
Mr. Carlisle presented a report on this item, including draft provisions regulating sober 
living facilities. 
 
There was general discussion on the item. 
 
David Lord, representative from Great Lakes Recovery Community, addressed 
questions related to sober living facilities. 
 
Planning Commission determined that it would be appropriate to limit sober living 
facilities to adults, 18 years of age and above. 
 
Staff informed Planning Commission next steps would be to present a revised draft 
based on feedback. 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 12, 2013 
  
 
 

5 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
There were general Planning Commission comments. 
 

The Regular meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:15 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
       
John J. Tagle, Chair 
 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2013 PC Minutes\Draft\2013 02 12 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



  PC 2013.03.12 
  Agenda Item # 5 
 

 
 
 
 
DATE: March 7, 2013 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 

 (File Number SU 400) – Proposed Starbucks/Qdoba Oakland Mall Outlot, 
 Northwest Corner of John R and 14 Mile, Section 35, Currently Zoned GB 
 (General Business) District 

 
The petitioner Urban Retail Properties submitted the above referenced Special Use Approval 
and Preliminary Site Plan Approval application for a proposed Starbucks/Qdoba outlot 
restaurant.  The site is presently an underutilized parking lot.   
 
The Planning Commission considered this item at the February 12, 2013 Regular meeting and 
postponed the item (see attached meeting minutes). 
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the application.  CWA prepared the report with input from various City 
departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and Fire.  City Management 
supports the findings of fact contained in the report and recommends approval of the project, as 
noted. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
3. Minutes from February 12, 2013 Planning Commission Regular meeting (excerpt) 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ SU 400 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU 400  Starbucks Qdoba Oakland Mall Outlot  Sec 35\PC Memo 03 12 2013.docx 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File 
Number SU 400) – Proposed Starbucks/Qdoba Oakland Mall Outlot, Northwest Corner of 
John R and 14 Mile, Section 35, Currently Zoned GB (General Business) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-03- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed Starbucks/Qdoba Restaurant, located on the northwest corner of John R and 14 
Mile, Section 35, currently zoned GB (General Business) District, be granted, subject to the 
following: 
 

1. Expand Maple Road sidewalk to 8-feet. 
2. Work with Engineering Department to determine location of sidewalk.  

 
Yes: 
No: 
Absent: 
 
MOTION CARRIED / FAILED 
 
 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU 400  Starbucks Qdoba Oakland Mall Outlot  Sec 35\Proposed Resolution 2013 03 12.doc 



Starbucks / Qdoba Oakland Mall Outlot

Legend

1: 878

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

730146 146Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

1/21/2013



Starbucks/Qdoba Oakland Mall Outlot

Legend

1: 878

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

730146 146Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

1/21/2013

Form Based Zoning (Current)
(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(CF) Community Facilities District

(EP) Environmental Protection District

(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)

(MRF) Maple Road (Form Based)

(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)

(CB) Community Business

(GB) General Business

(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District

(O) Office Building District

(OM) Office Mixed Use

(P) Vehicular Parking District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(RT) One Family Attached Residential District

(MR) Multi-Family Residential

(MHP) Manufactured Housing

(UR) Urban Residential

(RC) Research Center District

(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales



 

  

605 S. Main Street, Ste. 1 
Ann Arbor, MI  48104 
 
(734) 662-2200 
(734) 662-1935 Fax 

 
Date:  March 4, 2013 

 

Preliminary Site Plan and Special Use Review 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
 
Applicant: Professional Engineering Associates 
 
Project Name: Oakland Mall Outlot 
 
Plan Date: Application dated January 10, 2013 
 
Location: North Side of W. Fourteen Mile Road (Oakland County Mall)   
 
Zoning: GB, General Business District 
 
Action Requested: Preliminary Site Plan and Special Use Approval 
 
Required Information: Deficiencies noted 
 
 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
We received a site plan and accompanying documents for a proposed commercial infill development 
within the Oakland Mall site.   The applicant is proposing a 2,500 sq/ft Qdoba and a 1,900 sq/ft 
Starbucks with a drive-thru.   The proposed development fronts on Fourteen Mile Road; however there 
is no direct curb-cut off Fourteen Mile Road.  Access to the development will be via an internal drive 
that services Oakland Mall.  The development is located between the existing Chili’s and Bank of 
America. The drive-through use requires a special use.    
 
PREVIOUS PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW 
 
The application was first reviewed at the Planning Commission meeting on February 12, 2013.  Please 
review our February 8, 2013 memo for a complete site plan review.  At the February 12th meeting, the 
application was continued so that the applicant was able to address the following items:  
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
2  P a g e  

1. Confirm that ten (10) stacking spaces can be provided. 
 
The applicant has resubmitted a site that shows that ten (10) stacking spaces.  To do so the applicant 
has moved the building closer to Fourteen Mile.  All setback requirements have been met.  
 
2.  Indicate location of bike rack on site plan.     
 
The applicant has shown a bike rack on the site plan.  The bike rack is located adjacent to the 
Starbucks outdoor seating area facing the parking lot.   
 
3. Provide a sidewalk along their section of Fourteen Mile road. 
 
The applicant has shown a 5-foot sidewalk along their section of Fourteen Mile Road.   Due to the 
location of the existing light poles, the sidewalk is partially located outside of the right-of-way and 
on their property.  This sidewalk should be 8-feet in width and if located on their property an 
easement must be provided. The final location of the sidewalk can be worked out with the 
Engineering Department and resubmitted for final site plan review.   
 
4. Consider extending sidewalk to bus stop. 
 
The applicant has indicated that they do not want to install this connection at this time.  The 
additional sidewalk work is not approved current year’s capital budget for the Mall.  They will 
consider the connection in the future.   

 
5. Provide sidewalk and crosswalk to connect the Fourteen Mile sidewalk to the pedestrian 

ramp. 
 
The applicant has added a sidewalk and crosswalk that connects the Fourteen Mile sidewalk to the 
pedestrian ramp. 

 
6. Add one (1) additional parking lot tree. 

 
The applicant has added the additional one (1) parking lot tree.  The provided landscaping is 
compliant with ordinance requirements.   
 
7. Confirm number of parking lot lights. 
 
The applicant has confirmed that the site will include two (2) parking lot poles with two (2) lights 
each, twelve (12) building mounted lights, and seven (7) lit bollards.   

 
8.  Resubmit parking lot light fixture. 
 
The applicant has submitted the parking lot light fixture.  The resubmitted fixture is full-cut off.    

 
9.  Confirm that bollard light is full cut-off or fully shielded.    
 
The applicant has confirmed that bollard light is fully shielded.  All submitted fixtures are either full 
cut-off or fully shielded.    



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
3  P a g e  

 
 
10. Reduce the lighting levels under the parking lot fixtures. 

 
The applicant has reduced the lighting level under the parking lot fixture to comply with ordinance 
photometric requirements.   

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
We support the proposed project and believe the project does meet or exceed minimum requirements.  
We recommend the Planning Commission approve the special use request and preliminary site plan 
application conditioned on the applicant satisfying the following requirements for the final site plan: 
 

1. Expand Maple Road sidewalk to 8-feet. 
2. Work with Engineering Department to determine location of sidewalk.  

 
 
Sincerely,  
 

 
  
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 12, 2013 
  
 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 

(File Number SU 400) – Proposed Starbucks/Qdoba Oakland Mall Outlot, 
Northwest Corner of John R and 14 Mile, Section 35, Currently Zoned GB 
(General Business) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle presented the report on the item. 
 
Jim Butler, Professional Engineering Associates, addressed items of concern 
listed in the report.  He indicated that the site plan would be revised to address all 
of the required items, including moving the building footprint forward to provide an 
additional required stacking space. 
 
There was general discussion on the item. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-02-011 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 

RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones the item to the 
next meeting or until such time that the applicant can put together an updated 
and complete site plan package. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 



















NORTH

CURRENT PLAN

URBAN



URBAN



URBAN



URBAN









360° lighted louvers - 14 LEDs

 360 -10 10 watts at 225mA 

 360 -18 18 watts at 350mA

 360 -26 26 watts at 500mA

 

180° lighted louvers - 7 LEDs1,2 (Provides reduced backside light.)

 180 -10 10 watts at 450mA 

 180 -18 18 watts at 700mA
      
1. 180° achieved by populating half of LEDs. 
2. 180° distributions include an internal house side shield to limit the amount of backlight.
      

  BR840   Standard Shaft     42"  36"  30" 

  BR841   Head Only     7.1"

  BR842
  School Bollard 
  Reinforced Shaft with 
  Galvanized Steel Tenon

    42"  36"  30" 

Bollard LED

HEIGHT

Job:
Type: 
Notes:

Page 1 of 3

The Philips Gardco LED Bollard family features the round full cutoff bollard, the BR840 series. This sleek series features LEDs concealed 
below cast louvers to provide down lighting for landscape and pathway applications. The BR840 series features 4" diameter extruded 
aluminum shafts. Available mountings include the standard shaft, with a welded cast base mounted firmly to anchor bolts. The BR840 series 
also is available with a galvanized steel base tenon reinforced shaft (BR842) for applications requiring additional support, such as schools. 
BR840 series bollards provide full cutoff performance.

PREFIX lEd conTRol

lEd SElEcTIon

cW

nW

WW

5,700°K , 75CRI

4,000°K , 75CRI

3,000°K , 75CRI 

volTaGE

UnIv 120V through 277V, 

50hz to 60hz input.Note:  A variation of LED wattage 
(+/- 8%) may occur due to LED 
manufacturer’s forward volt specification 
and ambient temperature.

lIGHTEd covERaGE / lEd WaTTaGE

FInISH

oc  Optional Color Paint

Sc  Special Color Paint

BRP  Bronze Paint

BlP  Black Paint

WP  White Paint

nP  Natural Aluminum Paint

Specify RAL designation as  
ex: OC-RAL7024.

Specify. Must supply color chip.

1611 clovis Barker Road,  San Marcos, TX 78666     
(800) 227-0758    (512) 753-1000    FaX: (512) 753-7855    sitelighting.com
© 2013 Koninklijke Philips Electronics N.V.  All Rights Reserved.  
Philips Gardco reserves the right to change materials or modify the design of its product without 
notification as part of the company’s continuing product improvement program. 

G200-020/0113

Round Full Cutoff Bollard
BR840 Series,  Including Motion Response

PREFIX HEIGHT
lEd 

SElEcTIonlEd conTRol

lIGHTEd 
covERaGE / 

lEd WaTTaGE volTaGE FInISH

Enter the order code into the appropriate box above.  Note: Gardco reserves the right to refuse a configuration. Not all combinations and configurations 
are valid.  Refer to notes below for exclusions and limitations. For questions or concerns, please consult the factory.

oPTIonS

cWl Constant Wattage Full Light Output

               Full wattage and light output only. 

dIM 0 - 10V Dimming 
Dimming controls by others. The dimming driver utilized permits dimming 
control via a potentiometer (by others) or via 0 - 10V control (by others.)
Consult installation instructions for more information.

MR Motion Response
Featuring two (2) integral Passive Infrared (PIR) sensors. In the absence of motion,
luminares operate at 20% of normal power and light output (80% dimmed.)
See page 3 for more information on Motion Response luminaires.

oPTIonS

PcB3

SPR
Button Photocontrol
Surge Protection for 
120V through 277V 
Input meeting ANSI 
C62.41.2

3. Not available in BR841.

B



B

Bollard LED
Page 2 of 3

dIMEnSIonS

1611 clovis Barker Road,  San Marcos, TX 78666     
(800) 227-0758    (512) 753-1000    FaX: (512) 753-7855    sitelighting.com
© 2013 Koninklijke Philips Electronics N.V.  All Rights Reserved.  
Philips Gardco reserves the right to change materials or modify the design of its product without 
notification as part of the company’s continuing product improvement program. 

G200-020/0113

Round Full Cutoff Bollard
BR840 Series,  Including Motion Response

noTE: Factory supplied template must be used when setting anchor bolts.  Philips Gardco will not honor any 
claim for incorrect anchorage placement from failure to use factory supplied templates.

8.3"
21.082cm

7.1"
18.034cm

Height

BR840

2.75" Bolt Circle
              (6.985 cm)

1.375"
3.4925 cm  

4"
10.16 cm 

0.5" (1.27cm) or .75" (1.905cm) Conduit (by others)

45° 

11 gauge 
Steel
Base
Tenon
2.25"
(5.715 cm)
Square

BR842
School Bollard

with Steel Base Tenon

BR841
Head only

1.945" 
4.940 cm

2.75" (6.985 cm) Bolt Circle

BR841 mounts to a concrete structure 
via four (4) 3/8"  #16 hex head bolts 
inserted into threaded concrete 
inserts (provided by others.)

1.75" Dia. 
Conduit 
Opening

2.75" (6.985 cm) Bolt Circle

Ground
Lug

PIR Motion 
Sensor - Motion 
Response 
Luminaires Only.
Approximate 
diameter 0.8" 
(2cm.)



UPPER HoUSInG: Die cast aluminum upper housing featuring shielding 
louvers to provide down light.

loWER HoUSInG:

BR840 : The lower housing assembly consists of a .140" wall by 4" diameter high 
strength 6063-T6 extruded aluminum section incorporating a flush, weather-tight 
gasketed hand hole cover.

BR41 : Louver head assembly is suitable for attachment to architectural 
elements (by others). 

BR842 : The lower housing assembly consists of a .140" wall by 4" diameter high 
strength 6063-T6 extruded aluminum section, incorporating a flush, weather-tight 
gasketed hand hole cover, for placement over the galvanized steel tenon support 
structure. Tenon support structure is made from a .12" thick wall, 11 gauge steel, 
2.25" square tube, welded to top and bottom round steel support plates. The 
steel tenon support structure includes an opening aligned with the aluminum 
shaft hand hole to permit wiring. The entire steel tenon support structure is hot 
dipped galvanized after fabrication. 

lEd PERFoRMancE:

oPTIcal SYSTEM: Philips Gardco LED Bollards feature advanced Philips 
Gardco LED technology, assuring maxmimized light output. LED arrays are 
replaceable.

ancHoRaGE:

BR840: Base assembly consists of an internal welded cast ring section that 
provides for mounting to the foundation with four (4) 3/8" X 8" X 1½" anchor 
bolts on a 2¾" bolt circle.

BR841: The luminaire head mounts to a concrete structure utilizing four (4) 3/8"  
#16 hex head bolts inserted into threaded concrete inserts (provided by others) 
on a 2¾" bolt circle.

BR842: A high strength steel mounting tenon, hot-dip galvanized after fabrication, 
is secured to the concrete footing with (4) 3/8" x 8" x 1 1/2" anchor bolts on a 
2¾" bolt circle.

IP RaTInG: IP66 is the rating for the optical compartment.

ElEcTRIcal: The LED power supply is located within the bollard head. 
Bollards accept from 120 Volts through 277 Volts, 50hz to 60 hz, input. supply. 
The LED driver is located in the upper dome. LED drivers are replaceable. LEDs 
provided as specified. Power factor is not less than 90%. Luminaires consume 0.0 
watts in the off state.

MoTIon RESPonSE lUMInaIRES: Each Motion Response (MR) luminaire 
includes two (2) Panasonic EKMB1203112 Passive Infrared (PIR) sensors to 
detect motion. When motion is not detected for a 5 minute period, luminaires 
automatically dim to 20% power and light, gradually over a 2 minute period. 
Once Motion is detected, luminaires immediately ramp to full power and light 
output until motion is not detected for a 5 minute period.

PIR sensors are able to detect motion in the approximate patterns shown below:

Note: Motion sensors rely on specific zonal crossings to detect motion. It is 
possible for a person to directly approach the bollard motion sensor without 
crossing between zones until 15 feet from the motion sensor. The actual motion 
detection distance may vary based on specific application characteristics.

lUMInaIRE FInISH: Each luminaire receives a fade and abrasion resistant, 
electrostatically applied, thermally cured textured powdercoat finish

laBElS: All luminaires bear UL or CUL (where applicable) Wet Location 
labels.

WaRRanTY: Philips Gardco luminaires feature a 5 year limited warranty. 
Philips Gardco LED luminaires with LED arrays or modules feature a 5 year 
limited warranty covering the LED arrays or modules. LED drivers carry a 5 
year limited warranty. See Warranty Information on www.sitelighting.com for 
complete details and exclusions.

Bollard LED
Page 3 of 3

SPEcIFIcaTIonS

1611 clovis Barker Road,  San Marcos, TX 78666     
(800) 227-0758    (512) 753-1000    FaX: (512) 753-7855    sitelighting.com
© 2013 Koninklijke Philips Electronics N.V.  All Rights Reserved.  
Philips Gardco reserves the right to change materials or modify the design of its product without 
notification as part of the company’s continuing product improvement program. 

G200-020/0113

PREdIcTEd lUMEn dEPREcIaTIon daTa4

Ambient 
Temperature °C

Driver mA L70 Hours5

25 °C

225 230,000

350 220,000

450 / 500 165,000

700 150,000

40 °C

225 212,000

350 188,000

450 / 500 150,000

700 137,000

4. Predicted performance derived from LED manufacturer’s data and engineering design estimates, 
   based on IESNA LM-80 methodology.  Actual experience may vary due to field application conditions.
5. L70  is the predicted time when LED performance depreciates to 70% of initial lumen output. 

Round Full Cutoff Bollard
BR840 Series,  Including Motion Response

FUll cUToFF PERFoRMancE: Full cutoff performance means a luminaire distribution where zero candela intensity occurs at an angle at or above 90° above nadir . 
Additionally, the candela per 1000 lamp lumens does not numerically exceed 100 (10 percent) at a vertical angle of 80° above nadir. This applies to all lateral angles around the 
luminaire.

39' / 12m

Maximum 
Detection 

Area
~100°

Top View

Bollard



Date: type:

firm name:

prOJeCt:

A Division of Hubbell Lighting, Inc.

In a continuing effort to offer the best product possible we reserve the right to change, without 
notice, specifications or materials that in our opinion will not alter the function of the product.
Web: www.prescolite.com • Tech Support: (888) 777-4832

8" Surface Mount  
Cross Baffle

CFSCB813EB 
CFSCB818EB 
CFSCB826EB
Two 13W Twin Tube, 18W Quad 
Tube, or 26W CFL Quad Tube 
120V–277V

For conversion to millimeters,  
multiply inches by 25.4

Not to Scale

LFO-CFL-019

❑ CFSCB813EB
Ceiling mount 
cross baffle (2) 
13W 4-pin twin 
tube

❑ CFSCB818EB
Ceiling mount 
cross baffle (2) 
18W 4-pin quad 
tube 

❑ CFSCB826EB
Ceiling mount 
cross baffle (2) 
26W 4-pin quad 
tube

CyLINDerS CyLINDer OpTIONS CyLINDer OpTIONS CyLINDer FINISHeS reFLeCTOrS reFLeCTOr OpTIONS ACCeSSOrIeS

APPLICATIONS: 
The CFSCB series is a surface mounted  
cross baffle luminaire for low ceiling  
applications with limited plenum space. 
The shallow depth combined with a con-
cealed lamp source makes the surface  
cross baffle the ideal luminaire for a wide 
variety of architectural spaces including 
commercial, retail and hospitality  
applications.

HOUSING:
Seamless aluminum housing with powder 
coat finish. Spun aluminum top with provision 
for direct mounting to 31/2" or 4" outlet 
box. Spun aluminum bottom. Specify: 
brushed aluminum, matte black, bronze, 
matte white or prescolite’s exclusive Zet, 
metallic silver. 

REFLECTOR: 
Specular clear or champagne gold Alzak 
reflector with parabolic cross baffle. Over-
lap self-flange standard.

BALLAST:
One (1) compact fluorescent Class ‘p’ elec-
tronic multi-volt, multi-watt ballast suitable 
for operating 13W twin tube, 18W quad 
tube, or 26W quad tube lamps. 

LAMP:
Two (2) 13W twin tube with 2GX7 base, 
two (2) 18W quad tube withG24q-2 base, 
or two (2) 26W quad tube with G24q-3 
base lamps. Lamps furnished by others. 

SOCKET: 
Two (2) injection molded sockets suitable 
for 13W twin tube, 18W quad tube, or 
26W quad tube lamps. 

INSTALLATION:
easy installation onto standard J-box.

LABELS:
UL listed or UL/CSA listed with CDN option  
 for damp locations and through wiring

❑ BA
Brushed 
Aluminum

❑ BL
Matte Black

❑ BZ
Bronze

❑ WH
Matte White

❑ Z
“Zet” Metallic 
Silver

❑ STCB8CL
Specular clear 
Alzak

❑ STCB8CG
Champagne 
Gold Alzak

❑ STCB8WH
painted white 
reflector

❑ STCB8CLWW
Specular clear 
wall wash

❑ SS
Semi-specular 
reflector

❑ WT
painted white 
trim

❑ FSDFI
Fuse kit for field 
installation

41/2"

73/4" 
dia.

111/2" 
dia.

CATALOG NUMBer: eXAMpLe: CFSCB826eBBZ-STCB8CLSS

❑ CDN
Canadian electrical 
code compliant ballast 
disconnect

❑ MW26
Max Wattage label, 26W 

❑ FSDFA
Fuse kit installed at factory

❑ RIF1
radio interference filter 
(single circuit)
line voltage

❑ SYL2

Osram Sylvania Ballast 
(available only for 
standard eB option)

❑ DM
electronic dimming 
ballast (contact factory 
for wall control system 
compatibility)

❑ 7DM
Advance Mark 7 
Dimming Ballast 
to 5%, 4-wire, 
0-10V, analog 
(120V–277V)

❑ XDM
Advance Mark 10 
Dimming Ballast 
to 5%, 2-wire line 
voltage

❑ ECDM1

Lutron ecoSystem or 
3-wire line voltage 
dimming ballast 
(120-277V). Dims 
to 5%.

❑ SMT
philips Advance 
SmartMate® ballast 1. Not available in 13W

2. Available for Osram Sylvania   
 Quick 60+® Limited Warranty   
 when used with Osram lamp(s).   
 See www.prescolite.com for   
 details.

DELL
Text Box
OB

DELL
Rectangle

DELL
Rectangle

DELL
Rectangle

DELL
Rectangle



Web: www.prescolite.com • Tech Support: (888) 777-4832
701 Millennium Boulevard • Greenville, SC 29607 U.S.A. • phone (864) 678-1000
Copyright ©2011 prescolite, Inc., a division of Hubbell Lighting, Inc. All rights reserved 

Specifications subject to change without notice. • printed in U.S.A. • LFO-CFL-019 • 10/10/11

pHOTOMeTrIC DATA LiteForms® - 8" Surface Mount Cross Baffle   
CFSCB813EB/CFSCB818EB/CFSCB826EB

CFSCB826EB-STCB8CL with Clear Alzak Reflector and Cross Baffle
Two 26W Quad
Spacing Criteria: 
 0° = 1.2
 90° = 1.3
efficiency: 43.1%

 % effective Ceiling Cavity reflectance

 80% 70% 50% 30% 10%
 20% effective Floor Cavity reflectance 

% Wall reflectance

  70 50 30 10 70 50 30 10 50 30 10 50 30 10 50 30 10 
 1 .49 .48 .47 .46 .48 .47 .46 .45 .45 .44 .44 .43 .43 .42 .42 .42 .41

 2 .47 .45 .43 .41 .46 .44 .42 .41 .42 .41 .40 .41 .40 .39 .40 .39 .38

 3 .44 .42 .39 .38 .43 .41 .39 .38 .40 .38 .37 .39 .38 .36 .38 .37 .36

 4 .42 .39 .37 .35 .41 .38 .36 .34 .37 .36 .34 .37 .35 .34 .36 .34 .33

 5 .40 .36 .34 .32 .39 .36 .33 .32 .35 .33 .31 .34 .32 .31 .34 .32 .31

 6 .38 .34 .31 .29 .37 .33 .31 .29 .33 .31 .29 .32 .30 .29 .32 .30 .29

 7 .35 .31 .29 .27 .35 .31 .28 .27 .30 .28 .27 .30 .28 .26 .29 .28 .26

 8 .33 .29 .26 .24 .33 .29 .26 .24 .28 .26 .24 .28 .26 .24 .27 .25 .24

 9 .31 .27 .24 .22 .31 .27 .24 .22 .26 .24 .22 .26 .24 .22 .25 .23 .22

 10 .29 .25 .22 .20 .29 .25 .22 .20 .24 .22 .20 .24 .22 .20 .24 .21 .20

ro
om

 C
av

ity
ra

tio

COEFFICIENTS OF UTILIZATION Zonal Cavity Method

Test No. pL5125

CANDLEPOWER 
DISTRIBUTION 

NOTES
     Denotes a Virtual Source reflector.

refer to www.prescolite.com for additional photometric tests 
(IeS Files).

LAMP DATA
rated Watts 13W Twin 18W Quad 26W Quad
Rated Lumens 900 1250 1800
Efficacy (LPW) 69 69 69
rated Life 10,000 hours 10,000 hours 10,000 hours
CrI 82 82 82
Minimum Starting Temp. 0° F 0° F 0° F

CFSCB826EB-STCB8CL Test No. pL5125

CANDLEPOWER 
SUMMARY

 Angle 0° 45° 90°

 0 647 647 647
 5 683 681 676
 15 684 716 743
 25 602 661 739
 35 397 468 522
 45 143 180 299
 55 15 38 7
 65 0 0 0
 75 0 0 0
 85 0 0 0

BALLAST DATA  13W 18W 26W
 120V  277V 347V 120V  277V 347V 120V  277V 347V

Total System Watts 27W 28W N/A 38W 38W 36W 57W 57W 58W 
Input Current (Amps) 0.22 0.1  0.32 0.14 0.11 0.48 0.21 0.17 
Input Frequency 50/60Hz 50/60Hz 50/60Hz 50/60Hz 50/60Hz 50/60Hz 50/60Hz 50/60Hz 50/60Hz 
Power Factor >97% >97%  >97% >97% >97% >97% >97% >97% 
Ballast Factor 1 1  >98% >98% 1 >98% >98% 1 
Total Harmonic Distortion <10% <10%  <10% <10% <10% <10% <10% <10% 
Total Harmonic Distortion -18°C (0°F) -18°C (0°F) -18°C (0°F) -18°C (0°F) -18°C (0°F) -18°C (0°F) -18°C (0°F) -18°C (0°F) -18°C (0°F)

LUMINANCE DATA IN CANDELA/Sq. METER
Angle in  Average Average Average 
Vertical 0° 45° 90°  
45° 6685 8391 13893
55° 864 2161 400
65° 0 0 0
75° 0 0 0
85°  0 0 0

AvERAGE INITIAL FOOTCANDLES
Multiple Units (Square Array)
Ceiling 80% Wall 50% Floor 20%

26W Quads
SpACING rCr1 rCr3 rCr7
 6.0 42 35 26
 7.0 31 26 19
 8.0 23 20 14
 9.0 18 16 11
 10.0 15 13 9

200

400

600

800

1000

90°

75°

60°

45° 

0° 15° 30°
Beam
45-135
90



H

DW

Specifications

Width: 15”
(38.1 cm)

Depth: 13-3/4”
(34.9 cm)

Height: 9-1/4”
(25.5 cm)

Weight 
(max):

34 lbs
(15.4 kg)

ASW1 LED

  Series Light Engines Performance 
Package 1 Distribution Voltage Mounting Options Finish (required)

ASW1 LED 1 One engine (49 or 
63 LEDs)

350 mA options:
49B350/30K 3000K

49B350/40K 4000K

49B350/50K 5000K

63B350/30K 3000K

63B350/40K 4000K

63B350/50K 5000K

530 mA options:
63B530/30K 3000K

63B530/40K 4000K

63B530/50K 5000K

SR2 Type II

SR3 Type III

SR4 Type IV

MVOLT 2

120 2 

208 2 

240 2 

277 2 

347

480

Shipped included
(blank) Surface mount

Shipped separately 

BBW Surface-mounted 
back box (for conduit 
entry) 3

Shipped installed
SF Single fuse (120, 277, 347V) 4 

DF Double fuse (208, 240, 480V) 4 

PE Photoelectric cell, button type 5, 6

DMG 0-10V dimming driver (no controls) 7

DFL Diffusing lens

Shipped separately  3

VG Vandal guard 

WG Wire guard 

DDBXD Dark bronze

DBLXD Black

DNAXD Natural 
aluminum

DWHXD White

DDBTXD Textured dark 
bronze

DBLBXD Textured black

DNATXD Textured natural 
aluminum

DWHGXD Textured white

NOTES

1 Configured with 4000K (/40K) provides the 
shortest lead times. Consult factory for 3000K 
(/30K) and 5000K (/50K) lead times.

2 MVOLT driver operates on any line voltage 
from 120-277V (50/60 Hz). Specify 120, 208, 
240 or 277 options only when ordering with 
fusing (SF, DF options) or photocontrol (PE 
option).

3 Also available as a separate accessory; see 
Accessories information at left. 

4 Single fuse (SF) requires 120 or 277 voltage 
option. Double fuse (DF) requires 208 or 240 
voltage option. 

5 Photocontrol (PE) requires 120, 208, 240, 277  
or 347 voltage option. 

6 Must be ordered with fixture; cannot be field 
installed. 

7 Not available with 347 or 480V.

ASW1 LED
LED Wall Luminaire

Ordering Information EXAMPLE: ASW1 LED 1 63B350/40K SR4 MVOLT DDBTXD

Catalog 
Number

Notes

Type

Accessories
Ordered and shipped separately. 

ASW1BBW  DDBXD U Back box accessory (specify 
finish)

ASW1WG U Wire guard accessory

ASW1VG U Vandal guard accessory

Hit the Tab key or mouse over the page to see all interactive elements.

D

H

W

Introduction
™

™

1 13/16

3 9/16

2 9/16

5 1/8

FOR USE WITH
1/4" FASTENERS

1 3/4" DIA

Drilling

OC

1 49B350/40KSR2 MVOL DDBXD



Lumen values are from photometric tests performed in accordance with IESNA LM-79-08. Data is considered to be representative 
of the configurations shown, within the tolerances allowed by Lighting Facts. Actual performance may differ as a result of end-
user environment and application. Contact factory for performance data on any configurations not shown here.

To see complete photometric reports or download .ies files for this product, visit Lithonia Lighting’s ASW1 LED homepage. 

Performance Data

Photometric Diagrams

Lumen Output
Use these factors to determine relative lumen output for average ambient temperatures 
from 0-40°C (32-104°F).

Lumen Ambient Temperature (LAT) Multipliers

Light 

Engines

Drive 

Current 

(mA)

Performance 

Package

System 

Watts

Dist.

Type

40K

(4000K, 67 CRI)

Lumens B U G LPW

1

(49 LEDs)

350 49B350/--K 58 W

SR2 4882 1 0 1 84

SR3 4557 1 0 1 79

SR4 4497 1 0 1 78

1

(63 LEDs)

350 63B350/--K 73 W

SR2 5846 1 0 1 80

SR3 6254 1 0 1 86

SR4 6071 1 0 1 83

530 63B530/--K 109W

SR2 7957 2 0 2 73

SR3 8188 2 0 2 75

SR4 8124 2 0 2 75

Current (A)

Light 
Engines

Drive Current 
(mA)

System 
Watts

120 208 240 277 347 480

1 (49) 350 58W 0.54 0.31 0.27 0.23 0.19 0.13

1 (63)
350 73W 0.68 0.39 0.34 0.29 0.23 0.17

530 109W 1.01 0.58 0.50 0.44 0.35 0.25

Electrical Load

Ambient Lumen Multiplier

0°C  32°F 1.02

10°C  50°F 1.01

20°C 68°F 1.00

25°C 77°F 1.00
30°C 86°F 1.00

40°C  104°F 0.99

Projected LED Lumen Maintenance
Data references the extrapolated performance projections for the ASW1 LED 1 63B530  
platform in a 30°C ambient, based on 10,000 hours of LED testing (tested per IESNA LM-
80-08 and projected per IESNA TM-21-11).

To calculate LLF, use the lumen maintenance factor that corresponds to the desired number 
of operating hours below. For other lumen maintenance values, contact factory.

Operating Hours 0 25,000 50,000 100,000

Lumen Maintenance 
Factor

1.0 0.95 0.92 0.87

LEGEND

0.1 fc

0.5 fc

1.0 fc

4

3

2

1

0

-4

-3

-2

-1

4 3 2 1 0 4321

4

3

2

1

0

-4

-3

-2

-1

4 3 2 1 0 4321

4

3

2

1

0

-4

-3

-2

-1

4 3 2 1 0 4321

FEATURES & SPECIFICATIONS

INTENDED USE 

CONSTRUCTION

 FINISH 

 OPTICS 

 ELECTRICAL 

INSTALLATION 

 LISTINGS 
US. Patent No. 

D500,569. Canada Patent No. 107561.

 WARRANTY 

 Note:



Product Specifications  Atlantis 1649 BZ
The Hinkley Atlantis outdoor lantern features a Bronze (BZ) 
finish and an etched glass lens.

Lamp Specifications

Hinkley Lighting    12600 Berea Road    Cleveland, Ohio 44111    216.671.3300 p    216.671.4537 f    www.hinkleylighting.com

Item 1649 BZ

Finish Powder Coated Bronze

Width 9"

Height 24"

Extension 4"

Top to Outlet 20¾"

Back Plate Dimensions 4½"W, 6½"H

Bulbs (2) 4w LED MR-16

Other

Model LMR16-3-30K25

Base GU5.3

Color Temperature 3000K

Color Rendering Index 80

Beam Angle 25°

Lumininous Flux 180Lm

2"

1¾"

o

o

1M

2M

780 Lux

200 Lux

Beam Angle 25°

LMR16-3-30K25

DELL
Text Box
TYPE OD



HINKLEY company claims to have property rights in the United States to the design for the items described in this document. 
Hinkley or another party might have similar proprietary rights in other countries as well. Do not manufacture, use, sell, offer to sell, 

or import any products incorporating these proprietary rights without permission from Hinkley and or any other applicable party



HINKLEY company claims to have property rights in the United States to the design for the items described in this document. 
Hinkley or another party might have similar proprietary rights in other countries as well. Do not manufacture, use, sell, offer to sell, 

or import any products incorporating these proprietary rights without permission from Hinkley and or any other applicable party



AS1 LED
LED Area Luminaire

Specifications

Ordering Information EXAMPLE: AS1 LED 1 63B350/40K SR5 MVOLT SPA DDBXD

D
ri

lli
ng

Catalog 
Number

Notes

Type

Introduction

The Aeris™ family combines sleek, fluid forms and 
crisp edges into a striking architectural aesthetic 
that can be echoed throughout entire sites.

The AS1 LED integrates the latest LED technology 
with the designer aesthetic of the Aeris™ family for 
stylish, high-performance illumination that lasts. 
The AS1 LED is ideal for replacing 100-250W metal 
halide in area lighting applications with typical 
energy savings of 65% and expected service life of 
over 100,000 hours.

Accessories
Ordered and shipped separately. 

 Tenon O.D. Single Unit 2 at 180° 2 at 90° 3 at 120° 3 at 90° 4 at 90°

2-3/8” AST20-190 AST20-280 AST20-290 AST20-320 AST20-390 AST20-490

2-7/8” AST25-190 AST25-280 AST25-290 AST25-320 AST25-390 AST25-490

4” AST35-190 AST35-280 AST35-290 AST35-320 AST35-390 AST35-490

Tenon Mounting Slipfitter *

* For round pole mounting (RPA) only.

EPA: 0.7 ft2

(0.07 m2)

Length: 22-1/4”
(56.4 cm)

Width: 13”
(33.0 cm)

Height: 6-3/8”
(15.9 cm)

Weight 
(max):

33 lbs
(14.8 kg)

www.lithonia.com
© 2011-2013 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc.  All rights reserved. 

Hit the Tab key or mouse over the page to see all interactive elements.

Visit Lithonia Lighting’s POLES CENTRAL to see our wide selection of poles, 
accessories and educational tools.

The Aeris™ has a unique drilling pattern. Specify this drilling pattern when 
specifying poles, per the table below. 

 DM19AS 1 at 90°  DM28AS 2 at 180° 
 DM29AS 2 at 90°  DM39AS 3 at 90° 
 DM49AS 4 at 90° DM32AS 3 at 120° *

Example: SSA 20 4C DM19AS DDBXD

NOTES

1 Configured with 4000K (40K) provides the shortest 
lead times. Consult factory for 3000K (30K) and 
5000K (50K) lead times.

2 MVOLT driver operates on any line voltage from 
120-277V (50/60 Hz). Specify 120, 208, 240 or 277 
options only when ordering with fusing (SF, DF 
options).

3 Single fuse (SF) requires 120, 277 or 347 voltage 
option. Double fuse (DF) requires 208, 240 or 480 
voltage option.

4 Not available with 347 or 480V. 
5 Also available as a separate accessory; see 

Accessories information at left.
6 Requires luminaire to be specified with PER option. 

Ordered and shipped as a separate line item.

AS1 LED

  Series Light Engines Performance Package 1 Distribution Voltage Mounting Options Finish (required)

AS1 LED 1 One engine 
(49 or 63 LEDs)

350 mA options:
49B350/30K 3000K

49B350/40K 4000K

49B350/50K 5000K

63B350/30K 3000K

63B350/40K 4000K

63B350/50K 5000K

530 mA options:
63B530/30K 3000K

63B530/40K 4000K

63B530/50K 5000K

SR2 Type II

SR3 Type III

SR4 Type IV

SR5 Type V

MVOLT 2

120 2

208 2

240 2

277 2

347

480

Shipped included
SPA Square pole 

mounting

RPA Round pole mounting

WBA Wall bracket 

Shipped installed
PER NEMA twist-lock receptacle only (no 

controls) 

SF Single fuse (120, 277, 347V) 3

DF Double fuse (208, 240, 480V) 3

DMG 0-10V dimming driver (no controls) 4

DFL Diffusing lens

Shipped separately 
VG Vandal guard 5

DDBXD Dark bronze

DBLXD Black

DNAXD Natural 
aluminum

DWHXD White

DDBTXD Textured dark 
bronze

DBLBXD Textured black

DNATXD Textured natural 
aluminum

DWHGXD Textured white

H

LW

DSS124N 1.5 TJJE U Photocell - SSL twist-lock (120-277V) 6

REN480 NM1 J1 ROAM® node (480V) 6

SC U Shorting cap 6

AS1VG U Vandal guard accessory

KMA8 DDBXD U Mast arm adapter (specify finish)

SPA19/MR2 DDBXD U Square pole DM19 to DM19AS adapter (specify finish)

RPA19/MR2 DDBXD U Round pole DM19 to DM19AS  adapter (specify finish)

For more control options, visit DTL and ROAM online.

Top of Pole

0.563”

2.650”

1.325”
0.400”

Template #8

OE

1 63B530/40K SR3 MVO SPA DDBXD



Lumen values are from photometric tests performed in accordance with IESNA LM-79-08. Data is considered to be representative 
of the configurations shown, within the tolerances allowed by Lighting Facts. Actual performance may differ as a result of end-
user environment and application. Contact factory for performance data on any configurations not shown here.

Performance Data

Photometric Diagrams

www.lithonia.com
© 2011-2013 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc.  All rights reserved. Rev. 01/22/13

Lumen Output
Use these factors to determine relative lumen output for average ambient temperatures 
from 0-40°C (32-104°F).

Lumen Ambient Temperature (LAT) Multipliers

To see complete photometric reports or download .ies files for this product, visit Lithonia Lighting’s AS1 LED homepage. 

Ambient Lumen Multiplier

0°C  32°F 1.02

10°C  50°F 1.01

20°C 68°F 1.00

25°C 77°F 1.00
30°C 86°F 1.00

40°C  104°F 0.99

I

Current (A)

Light 
Engines

Drive Current 
(mA)

System 
Watts

120 208 240 277 347 480

1 (49) 350 59W 0.55 0.32 0.27 0.24 0.19 0.14

1 (63)
350 75W 0.69 0.40 0.35 0.30 0.24 0.17

530 109W 1.01 0.58 0.50 0.44 0.35 0.25

Electrical Load

Projected LED Lumen Maintenance
Data references the extrapolated performance projections for the AS1 LED 1 63B530  
platform in a 40°C ambient, based on 10,000 hours of LED testing (tested per IESNA LM-
80-08 and projected per IESNA TM-21-11).

To calculate LLF, use the lumen maintenance factor that corresponds to the desired number 
of operating hours below. For other lumen maintenance values, contact factory.

Operating Hours 0 25,000 50,000 100,000

Lumen Maintenance 
Factor

1.0 0.95 0.92 0.87

Light 

Engines

Drive 

Current 

(mA)

Performance 

Package

System 

Watts

Dist.

Type

40K

(4000K, 67 CRI)

Lumens B U G LPW

1

(49 LEDs)

350 49B350/--K 59 W

SR2 5060 1 0 1 86

SR3 4642 1 0 1 79

SR4 4551 1 0 1 77

SR5 4750 2 0 1 81

1

(63 LEDs)

350 63B350/--K 75 W

SR2 6106 1 0 1 81

SR3 6276 1 0 1 84

SR4 6207 1 0 1 83

SR5 6395 3 0 1 85

530 63B530/--K 109W

SR2 8022 2 0 2 74

SR3 8194 2 0 2 75

SR4 8192 2 0 2 75

SR5 8366 3 0 1 77

Te
st

 N
o

. L
TL

20
04

7 
 t

es
te

d
 in

 a
cc

o
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 

LEGEND

0.1 fc

0.5 fc

1.0 fc

Te
st

 N
o

. L
TL

20
04

6 
te

st
ed

 in
 a

cc
o

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 

4

3

2

1

0

-4

-3

-2

-1

4 3 2 1 0 4321

4

3

2

1

0

-4

-3

-2

-1

4 3 2 1 0 4321

4

3

2

1

0

-4

-3

-2

-1

4 3 2 1 0 4321

4

3

2

1

0

-4

-3

-2

-1

4 3 2 1 0 4321

FEATURES & SPECIFICATIONS

 INTENDED USE 
The energy savings and long life of the AS1 LED area luminaire make it a reliable choice for 
illuminating streets, walkways, parking lots, and surrounding areas.

 CONSTRUCTION 
Single-piece die-cast aluminum housing with nominal wall thickness of .012”. Die-cast doorframe 

tubular silicone.  

 FINISH 

that provides superior resistance to corrosion and weathering. A tightly controlled multi-stage 

changes without cracking or peeling. 

 OPTICS 

TM 
product, meaning it is consistent with the LEED® TM criteria for eliminating 
wasteful uplight. 

 ELECTRICAL 

 INSTALLATION 
Integral arm provides easy installation to a pole and assists in alignment and leveling. 

 LISTINGS 
U.S. Patent No. 

D447,590. Canada Patent No. 94324.

 WARRANTY 
 www.acuitybrands.com/

.

 Note:

SR2 SR3 SR4 SR5



  PC 2012.03.12 
  Agenda Item # 6 
 

 
 
DATE: March 7, 2013 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 979) – Proposed Galleria of 

Troy, North side of Big Beaver between Wilshire and I-75, Section 21, Currently 
Zoned BB (Big Beaver) District 

 
 
The petitioner Galleria of Troy LLC submitted the above referenced Preliminary Site Plan 
Approval application for two restaurants, a retail building and future hotel(s) within the Big 
Beaver corridor.   
 
The property is currently zoned BB (Big Beaver) District.  The Planning Commission is 
responsible for granting Preliminary Site Plan Approval for this item. The Planning Commission 
considered this item at the February 12, 2013 Regular meeting and postponed the item (see 
attached minutes). 
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the project.  CWA prepared the report with input from various City 
departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and Fire.  City Management 
supports the findings of fact contained in the report and the recommendations included therein.   
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
3. Minutes from February 12, 2013 Planning Commission Regular meeting (excerpt). 

 
 
 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 979  Galleria of Troy LLC  Sec 21\SP-979 PC Memo 03 12 13.docx 



PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 979) – Proposed Galleria of Troy, 
North side of Big Beaver between Wilshire and I-75, Section 21, Currently Zoned BB (Big 
Beaver) District 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-03- 
Moved by:  
Seconded by:  
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Article 8 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Galleria of Troy, located on the north side 
of Big Beaver between Wilshire and I-75, Section 21, within the BB (Big Beaver) 
district, be granted, for the following reasons:  
 ) or 
 
(denied, for the following reasons:  ) or 
 
(postponed, for the following reasons:  ) 
 
 
Yes:  
No:  
 
MOTION CARRIED/FAILED 
 
 
 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 979  Galleria of Troy LLC  Sec 21\Proposed PC Resolution 03 12 2013.doc 



Preliminary Site Plan, Galleria of Gift LLC

11/13/2012

Legend

1: 1,872

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1560312 312Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Ponds and Basins
Streams and Creeks
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3



Preliminary Site Plan, Galleria of Gift LLC

11/13/2012

Legend

1: 2,059

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1720343 343Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Current Zoning Ordinance
(PUD) Planned Unit Development
(CF) Community Facilities District
(EP) Environmental Protection District
(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)
(MRF) Maple Road (Form Based)
(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)
(CB) Community Business
(GB) General Business
(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District
(O) Office Building District
(OM) Office Mixed Use
(P) Vehicular Parking District
(R-1A) One Family Residential District
(R-1B) One Family Residential District
(R-1C) One Family Residential District
(R-1D) One Family Residential District
(R-1E) One Family Residential District
(RT) One Family Attached Residential District
(MR) Multi-Family Residential
(MHP) Manufactured Housing
(UR) Urban Residential
(RC) Research Center District
(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales

Ponds and Basins
Streams and Creeks
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3



 
 
       
  Revised: February 4, 2013  

March 4, 2013 
 

Preliminary Site Plan Review  
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
 
Applicant: Group 10 Management 
 
Project Name: Galleria of Troy  
 
Plan Date: Revised: February 15, 2013 
 
Location:  Northeast corner of Big Beaver Road and Troy Center Drive  
 
Zoning: BB, Big Beaver Form-based district 
 
Action Requested: Preliminary Site Plan Approval  
 
Required Information: Deficiencies noted 
 
 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 

 
We received a site plan and accompanying documents for a proposed commercial development at the 
lot located at the northeast corner of Big Beaver and Wilshire/Troy Plaza Drive.   The applicant is 
proposing a restaurant, retail, and hotel development on the existing vacant 5.9 acre site.  The applicant 
proposes to develop the site in two phases.  The proposed first phase is the development of three pad 
sites that front on Big Beaver Road.  The front eastern pad will be a Carrabbas Italian Grill, the front 
western pad will be a Bonefish Grill, and the user(s) of the front middle pad has not been determined.  
The applicant has labeled the middle pad as retail; however in discussions with the applicant they have 
indicated that this pad might include some restaurant uses.  Access to this phase will be via two (2) curb 
cuts off Troy Center Drive.    
 



Galleria of Troy 
March 4, 2013 

2 

The second phase will be the development of the back end of the site for hotel use.  The applicant has 
not submitted a site plan but has indicated the potential for up to two (2) hotels.   The applicant has not 
indicated the timing of the second phase.  This second phase is not included in this review and will 
require a future site plan review at the time of proposed buildout.   
 
The property is zoned Big Beaver Form-Based District.  The proposed development and mix of uses are 
by-right and only require Site Plan Review approval from the Planning Commission.   
 
Location of Subject Property: 
Northeast corner of Big Beaver Road and Troy Center Drive 
 
Proposed Uses of Subject Parcel: 
First Phase: Commercial (Restaurant and Retail) 
Second Phase: Hotel  
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
Vacant 
 
Current Zoning: 
The property is currently zoned Big Beaver Form Based Code, site type A. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Phase 2: Future Hotel Use  

Phase 1: Commercial  



Galleria of Troy 
March 4, 2013 

3 

 
 
 

Direction Zoning Use 
North  BB, Big Beaver Form Based Vacant / Parking 
South BB, Big Beaver Form Based Commercial  
East I-75 I-75 
West BB, Big Beaver Form Based Commercial 
 
MASTER PLAN 
 
The site was identified in the Big Beaver Corridor Study as one of five Corridor “Gateway” locations.  The 
plan calls for:  

• Building from lot line to lot line along the right-of-way rather than continuing to be a collection 
of isolated towers.     

• Multiple level buildings which includes vertically integrated mixed-use commercial, office and 
residential towers.   

• The use of prominent ground floor retail, restaurants and cafes allows visual interest and activity 
for visitors and residents.       

• Contain parking in structures that are shared by surrounding developments.   
• Parking in rear and not visible from major throughfares.  
• Buildings set close to the street. 

 
Though desired by the Master Plan a single large building or multiple storied buildings along Big Beaver 
at this site might not achievable.  However, there is an opportunity to develop a well-integrate site that 
includes creative yet consistent designed buildings.   While we recognize that there are a multitude of 
different architectural styles and patterns along Big Beaver, creating site integration, cohesiveness, and 
a consistent design pattern both between and among this site is important.    Because of its high 
visibility and prominence along Big Beaver, a key to site integration and cohesiveness, is a consistent 
building design pattern as well as the treatment and interaction between the buildings and the 
public/semi-public space along Big Beaver.  The applicant has made significant improvements to address 
building cohesiveness and providing quality public/semi-public space.  
 
Though there are still outstanding site planning issues to be addressed, the applicant through building 
integration as well as providing a high-quality streetscape along in the “Pedestrian Realm (area between 
building and Big Beaver)”, has provided the appropriate site integration and cohesiveness.  
 
Items to be Addressed: Address site plan issues to ensure development is consistent with Master Plan.     
 
PREVIOUS PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW 
 
The site plan was last reviewed by the Planning Commission at the February 12, 2013 meeting.  Please 
review our February 4, 2013 review for a detailed site plan review.  At the February 12th meeting, the 
application was continued so that the applicant was able to address the following items:  
 
1) Address concept of moving hotel building closer to Big Beaver. 
 



Galleria of Troy 
March 4, 2013 

4 

The Planning Commission requested consideration of moving the hotel portion of the development 
closer to Big Beaver and putting portions of the restaurant/retail and hotel parking behind the hotel 
building. The applicant notes that due to parking requirements of the three (3) buildings that front on 
Big Beaver, they will not move the hotel closer to Big Beaver.   
 
Items to be Addressed: None 
 
2) Move retail building closer to Big Beaver Road. 
 
The previous submittal showed the retail building setback 35-feet from Big Beaver.  This setback was not 
allowed to be approved by the Planning Commission.  The Planning Commission may adjust the required 
building line from 10-feet to a maximum of 30-feet beyond the property line for projects incorporating a 
permanent space for an outdoor café, or public space.  The applicant has moved the retail building 
closer to Big Beaver and all three buildings have been setback 30-feet to incorporate a plaza/streetscape 
and outdoor seating.    
 
Items to be Addressed: None 
 
3) Ensure that all parking along Troy Center Drive is behind the front building line. 

 
In the form-based districts, all parking shall be located in a side or rear yard.  All the parking is located 
behind the buildings that front along Big Beaver Road.  However, because this is a corner site, the 
parking must be located behind the front building line along Troy Center Drive.   The parking along Troy 
Center Drive meets the ordinance requirements.   
 
Items to be Addressed: None 
 
4) Incorporate bicycle parking as part of the pedestrian realm on Big Beaver. 
 
The applicant has added a bicycle parking rack on either end of the pedestrian realm on Big Beaver.  One 
rack is located in front of the Bone Fish Grill, the other is located in front of the Carrabbas.    
 
Items to be Addressed: None 
 
5) Address architectural comments for each building. 
 
We find that the applicant has made significant improvements to the elevations, particularly the retail 
building and Bonefish.  However we do provide the following architectural comments:  
 
Bonefish Grill: 

• The trash enclosure area is located at the northeast corner of the building which is directly 
adjacent to the pedestrian walkway.  If the applicant is not able to provide a common trash 
enclosure area for all three (3) buildings, the applicant should either relocate the Bonefish trash 
enclosure area inside the building or relocate the outdoor trash enclosure to the northwest 
corner of the building.    

• E.I.F. should not be used as primary material and rather used as accent material.   There is a 
significant amount of E.I.F. on all elevations.   

• Consider adding more height or variety in roof.   



Galleria of Troy 
March 4, 2013 

5 

• Include greater massing and bulk where possible for the Bonefish and Carrabbas’ building.  The 
second story for these buildings could include a small lounge, bar, or outdoor roof patio. 

 
Retail Building:  

• Is the balcony accessible directly from building?  Who is the future tenant of the corresponding 
space?   

• Should the balcony seating be provided on west balcony? 
• Ensure that the brick (color, type, etc) of all three buildings match.   

 
Carrabba’s: 

• The chosen building design and material use is not consistent with the Big Beaver Design 
Guidelines. Specifically, the Big Beaver Design Guidelines state that all buildings on Big Beaver 
should be “unique and attractive structures built of high-quality materials and should avoid 
being “branded” so as to allow for their adaptation to future tenants.”  

• The Carrabbas color scheme is bright and does not correspond with nor is consistent with the 
retail building or Bonefish.  Match color scheme of retail building and Bonefish. 

• Match brick of retail building and Bonefish. 
• Add transparency along west and north elevation.  
• E.I.F. wall on south elevation (fronting Big Beaver) should be revised.   
• Elevations do not match site plan.  Specifically the elevations show landscaping and a solid 

masonry wall where the site plan shows the trash enclosure access and gate.  The elevations 
should be reviewed to ensure that they match the site plan.      

• Consider adding more height or variety in roof.   
• Include greater massing and bulk where possible for the Bonefish and Carrabbas’ building.  The 

second story for these buildings could include a small lounge, bar, or outdoor roof patio. 
    
Items to be Addressed:  Address architectural comments for each building. 

 
6) Provide description (visual or written) indicating the use of materials and design features that 

provide design consistency between the retail building, Bonefish and Carrabbas. 
 
Though free-standing buildings, there is an opportunity to provide a consistent design pattern for all 
three.  While there are elements of the Bonefish and the retail building appear to have some 
consistency, the Carrabbas appears “branded” to the national prototype and does not appear to carry 
any of the common design elements.  The applicant should indicate the use of materials and design 
features that provide design consistency between the retail building, Bonefish and Carrabbas.   
 
Items to be Addressed: Provide description (visual or written) indicating the use of materials and design 
features that provide design consistency between the retail building, Bonefish and Carrabbas. 
 
7)  Provide color rendering along entire length of Big Beaver. 
 
The applicant provided a color rendering of all three buildings and public realm at the last planning 
commission meeting.   
 
Items to be Addressed: None 

 



Galleria of Troy 
March 4, 2013 

6 

8) Incorporate additional elements into the pedestrian realm as outline in the Big Beaver Design 
Guidelines.    

 
The applicant is greatly improving external and internal site pedestrian circulation.  The applicant is 
providing a 7-foot wide pedestrian spine through the site, which connects the commercial portion of the 
development to the future hotel use.  In addition, the applicant is proposing a full sidewalk along the 
entire length of Troy Center Drive.   
 
Along Big Beaver, the applicant 
is proposing a significant 
benefit via pedestrian 
enhancements by improving 
the “Pedestrian Realm (area 
between building and 
roadway)” with the following 
features:  

• 30-feet in depth of 
pedestrian area 

• Landscape planter 
boxes 

• Public art in front of 
retail buildings 

• Outdoor seating  
• Trash cans 
• Benches along Big 

Beaver 
• Pedestrian style pole 

lighting in pedestrian 
realm  

• Bike rack 
 
Items to be Addressed: None.    
 
9) Provide hardscape and softscape calculations.  
 
The applicant is providing approximately 28,000 sq/ft of softscape (16%) and 24,000 sq/ft of hardscape 
(13%).  The revised ordinance requires a minimum of fifteen percent (15%)site landscaping area. The 
provided landscaping exceeds ordinance requirements.   

 
Items to be Addressed: None.    
 
10) Reconfigure trash enclosure locations.   

     
The Planning Commission asked the applicant to consider alternative trash enclosure solutions, 
particularly for Bonefish.  The quality of the site layout and elevations from the parking lot are marred 
by the trash enclosures.  The applicant is encouraged to incorporate the trash enclosure as part of the 



Galleria of Troy 
March 4, 2013 

7 

building or provide one common site trash enclosure location along the east property line (adjacent to I-
75).   
 
The Bonefish trash enclosure details have been provided.  However, the Carrabbas and the retail 
building trash enclosure details have not been provided.    
 
Items to be Addressed: 1). Reconfigure trash enclosure locations; and 2). Provide trash enclosure details 
for the Carrabbas and the retail building. 
 
11) Provide building lighting fixtures. 
 
The applicant provided building light fixture detail sheets as requested.  
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
12) Provide pedestrian realm fixtures. 
 
The applicant is proposing five (5) pedestrian style pole lighting in pedestrian realm.   
 
Items to be Addressed: None 

 
13) Resubmit photometric calculations with all site and building lighting included. 

 
The applicant provided a revised photometric plan that complies with the lighting standards of Article 
13.  
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
14) Confirm transparency requirement for all buildings. 

 
Section 5.04.E.3.A of the Big Beaver design standards requires:  
 

The first floor of any front façade facing a right-of-way shall be no less than fifty (50) percent 
windows and doors, and the minimum transparency for facades facing a side street, side yard, or 
parking area shall be no less than 30 percent of the façade.  Transparency alternatives are 
permitted up to 80% of the 50% total along the front of buildings, and up to 100% of the sides of 
buildings.  The minimum transparency requirement shall apply to all sides of a building that abut 
an open space, including a side yard, or public right-of-way.  Transparency requirements shall 
not apply to sides which abut an alley.   

 
The applicant shall confirm that they meet the transparency requirement for all buildings.  It appears 
that the north, east, and west elevations of the Carrabbas does not meet this requirement.   

 
Items to be Addressed: Confirm transparency requirement for all buildings 
 
 
 
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS 



Galleria of Troy 
March 4, 2013 

8 

 
We support the conceptual development of this site, and find that the plan and development details are 
more consistent with the vision along Big Beaver and the requirements of Big Beaver form-based 
district.  However, we recommend that the following items be address and/or resubmitted prior to 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval:   
  

1) Address architectural comments for each building. 
2) Provide narrative indicating the use of materials and design features that provide design 

consistency between the retail building, Bonefish and Carrabbas. 
3) Reconfigure trash enclosure locations.       
4) Provide trash enclosure details for the Carrabbas and the retail building. 
5) Confirm transparency requirement for all buildings. 

 

 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 12, 2013 
  
 
 
7. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 979) – Proposed Galleria 

of Troy, North side of Big Beaver between Wilshire and I-75, Section 21, Currently 
Zoned BB (Big Beaver) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle presented the report on the item. 
 
Jim Butler, Civil Engineer from Professional Engineering Associates, addressed 
items of concern listed in the report. 
 
Scott Bowers, Architect from A², addressed architectural issues. 
 
There was general discussion on the item. 
 
Some members of the Planning Commission questioned the interpretation of the 
provision requiring the principal building to be set back a maximum of 30 feet from 
the right-of-way.  This was addressed by Mr. Savidant and Mr. Carlisle. 
 
Mr. Butler indicated the site could be redesigned so that it was compliant with the 
Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-02-012 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Krent 
 

RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones the item to the 
next meeting or until such time that the applicant can put together an updated 
and complete site plan package. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 





























12033

B
O

N
E

FI
S

H
 G

R
IL

L

HCG

1/21/13

DWM

B
ig

 B
ea

ve
r R

oa
d

Tr
oy

, M
ic

hi
ga

n 
48

08
4

G
al

le
ria

 a
t T

ro
y

A1.1

FLOOR PLAN





















  PC 2013.03.12 
  Agenda Item # 7 
 

 
 
 
 
DATE: March 8, 2013 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING - SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 

 (File Number SU 401) – Proposed Midwest Industrial Metals Inc., 2222 
 Stephenson Highway, Section 26, Currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and 
 Business) District 

 
The petitioner Midwest Industrial Metals, Inc. submitted the above referenced Special Use 
Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval application for a proposed materials recovery 
facility. 
 
It should be noted, the operation moved into the building some time ago and began operations, 
including materials sorting outside.  Code Enforcement received a number of complaints 
regarding the operation, and it was identified that the applicant needed Special Use Approval.   
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the application.  CWA prepared the report with input from various City 
departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and Fire.  City Management 
supports the findings of fact contained in the report and recommends approval of the project, as 
noted. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ SU 401 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU 401  Midwest Industrial Metals Inc  Sec 26\SU 401 PC Memo 03 12 2013.docx 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 
PUBLIC HEARING - SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File 
Number SU 401) – Proposed Midwest Industrial Metals Inc., 2222 Stephenson Highway, 
Section 26, Currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-03- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed Midwest Industrial Metals Inc., 2222 Stephenson Highway, Section 26, Currently 
Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) District, be granted, subject to the following: 
 
 

1. The applicant confirms that there is no outdoor storage or bins to be located in the 
rear of the site 

 
Yes: 
No: 
Absent: 
 
MOTION CARRIED / FAILED 
 
 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU 401  Midwest Industrial Metals Inc  Sec 26\Proposed Resolution 2013 03 12.doc 



Midwest Industrial Metals

Legend

1: 2,817

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

2350469 469Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

1/29/2013



Midwest Industrial Metals

Legend

1: 1,652

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1380275 275Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

1/29/2013

Form Based Zoning (Current)
(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(CF) Community Facilities District

(EP) Environmental Protection District

(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)

(MRF) Maple Road (Form Based)

(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)

(CB) Community Business

(GB) General Business

(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District

(O) Office Building District

(OM) Office Mixed Use

(P) Vehicular Parking District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(RT) One Family Attached Residential District

(MR) Multi-Family Residential

(MHP) Manufactured Housing

(UR) Urban Residential

(RC) Research Center District

(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales



 
 
 

 Date:  March 6, 2013 
 

Special Use Review 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
 
Applicant: Ark-Tec LLC 
 
Project Name: Materials Recovery Facility 
 
Plan Date: November 16, 2012 
 
Location: 2222 Stephenson Highway – Between Sylvia Drive and Piedmont 

Drive 
 
Zoning: IB, Integrated Business District 
 
Action Requested: Special Use Approval 
 
Required Information: Deficiencies noted 
 
 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
We are in receipt of a special land use application which includes a site plan demonstrating existing site 
conditions related to the addition of an indoor materials recovery facility within an existing industrial 
building.   
 
The applicant is proposing to utilize a portion of the existing industrial building to house a material 
recovery facility as part of their business operations.  The site is located at 2222 Stephenson Highway.  
The site is zoned IB, Integrated Business District.  Material recovery facilities are listed as a special use in 
the IB district. 
 
 
 



Material Recovery Facility 
March 6, 2013 

2 

Figure 1. – Aerial Photograph 
 

 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the east side of Stephenson Highway between Sylvia Drive and Piedmonte 
Drive. 
 
Size of Subject Property: 
The parcel is approximately 1.928 acres in area. 
 
Proposed Uses of Subject Parcel: 
The applicant proposes to modify the southeastern portion of the existing industrial building for 
material resource operations. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The subject property currently maintains an approximate 25,900 s.f. industrial building. 
 
Current Zoning: 
The property is currently zoned IB, Integrated Business District. 
  
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels and Current Land Use:  
 



Material Recovery Facility 
March 6, 2013 

3 

Direction Zoning Use 
North  IB, Integrated Business District Industrial / Warehousing 
South IB, Integrated Business District Industrial / Warehousing  
East MH, Manufactured Housing Troy Mobile Home Villa 
West GB, General Business Commercial  
 
NATURAL RESOURCES 
 
The site is improved with an existing 25,925 s.f. industrial building and other site improvements.  No 
natural features exist; therefore the proposed site improvements will not impact any protected natural 
features. 
  
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 

BUILDING LOCATION AND SITE ARRANGEMENT 
 

The existing building is located at the center of the site, with the parking in the front (west).  No site 
improvements are proposed.  All resource recovery operations will take place indoors. 
 
Items to be Addressed: None.   
 
AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, SETBACKS 
 
Required and Provided Dimensions: 
 
Section 4.15.C establishes the dimensional requirements for the IB District.  The applicant does not 
propose any building improvements other than internal configurations. The site’s area and building 
setbacks will not be impacted by the proposed materials recovery operations.  The requirements and 
the proposed dimensions are as follows: 

 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 

PARKING 
 
Parking: 

 Required: Provided: 

Front (west/Stephenson) 30 feet 97 feet 
Rear (east) 20 foot  187 feet 
Side (north) 10 feet  10 feet 

Side (south) 10 feet   19 feet 
Building Height Maximum 4 stories, 50 feet Less than 4 stories and 50 feet 

(existing to remain) 
Maximum Percent Lot Area 
Covered by Buildings 

40% Information not provided 
(existing to remain) 



Material Recovery Facility 
March 6, 2013 

4 

 
Seventeen (17) parking spaces (including 1 barrier-free space) are provided on the site.  No 
modifications to the site or the exterior of the building are proposed or required with the addition of 
the indoor materials recovery operation. 
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
SITE ACCESS AND CIRCULATION 
 
Vehicular access: 
 
The site will be accessed via the existing driveway from Stephenson Highway.  No modifications 
regarding site access are proposed. 
  
Pedestrian access:  
 
There is an existing public sidewalk along Stephenson Highway.  Internal pedestrian connections to the 
site are not proposed. 
 
Truck access: 
 
From the submitted site plan, the applicant indicates that they are removing existing storage bins and 
moving all outside storage interior to the building.  This will improve truck access and circulation.   As 
shown on the site plan, the applicant shall confirm that there is no outdoor storage or bins to be located 
in the rear of the site.   
 
Items to be Addressed: Confirm that there is no outdoor storage or bins to be located in the rear of the 
site.   
 
LIGHTING 
 
No additional lighting is proposed. 
  
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
LANDSCAPING / SCREENING 
 
Landscaping:  
 
A landscaping plan has not been provided nor is any additional landscaping proposed.   
 
Screening: 
 
The applicant is proposing to install privacy slats in an existing fence along the existing northern and 
southern property line.  There is an existing 10+ screen wall along the along the eastern property line.   
 
Items to be Addressed: None.    



Material Recovery Facility 
March 6, 2013 

5 

 
STANDARDS  
 
Use Standards 
 
Section 6.17 provides specific use requirements for material recovery facilities.   
 
1. All recyclable materials shall at all times be stored within a completely enclosed building.  

 
The site plan provided demonstrates that the area devoted to materials recovery will be located in a 
completely enclosed building.   

 
2. The proposed use must be of such location, size, and character that it will be in harmony with the 

appropriate and orderly development of the surrounding area. 
 
The proposed use is located in an industrial area. The completely enclosed use should not impact the 
adjacent properties. As noted, the applicant shall confirm that the site provides adequate screening to 
adjacent properties.    
 
3. Access and circulation shall be sufficient.  
 
Provided that the applicant confirms that there is no outdoor storage or bins to be located in the rear of 
the site, access and circulation is sufficient.   
 
4. Designed to eliminate any possible nuisance including dust, noise, fumes, vibration, smoke, or 

lights, or the presence of toxic materials. 
 
The proposed use should not provide additional nuisance than normally anticipated for a similar use in 
the area.   
 
5. The following activities shall be prohibited, except as noted: 

a.  Incineration or open burning in any building or on the site. 
b. Overnight storage of any refuse material, other than recyclable materials, in any 

building. 
c. Dumping or storage of material on the site outside the buildings at any time 

 
The applicant is not proposing any of the aforementioned prohibited activities.   
 

6. All recyclable materials temporarily stored outside the buildings must be in transport vehicles 
or transportable containers. 

 
The applicant indicates no outdoor storage.  
 
Standards of Approval 
 
In the IB District, materials recovery facilities are permitted as a special use. For any special use, 
according to Section 9.02.D, the Planning Commission shall “…review the request, supplementary 



Material Recovery Facility 
March 6, 2013 

6 

materials either in support or opposition thereto, as well as the Planning Department’s report, at a 
Public Hearing established for that purpose, and shall either grant or deny the request, table action on 
the request, or grant the request subject to specific conditions.” 
 
Section 9.03 states that before approving any requests for Special Use Approval, the Planning 
Commission shall consider: 
 
1. Compatibility with Adjacent Uses. The Special Use shall be designed and constructed in a manner 

harmonious with the character of adjacent property and the surrounding area. In determining 
whether a Special Use will be harmonious and not create a significant detrimental impact, as 
compared to the impacts of permitted uses.  

 
The proposed material recovery area will be confined within an existing industrial building within an 
established industrial park. The applicant should confirm adequate screening to ensure the adjacent 
residential use will not be impacted. 
 
2. Compatibility with the Master Plan. The proposed Special Use shall be compatible and in 

accordance with the goals and objectives of the City of Troy Master Plan and any associated sub-
area and corridor plans.  

 
The Master Plan designates the subject site and the surrounding area as 21st Century Industrial.  The 21st 
Century Industrial future land use classification encourages a variety of industrial uses; specifically, light 
industrial uses with no outdoor storage or external nuisances are especially encouraged.  The proposed 
enclosed material recovery facility is compatible with the goals and objectives of the City of Troy Master 
Plan. 
 
3. Traffic Impact. The proposed Special Use shall be located and designed in a manner which will 

minimize the impact of traffic, taking into consideration: pedestrian access and safety; vehicle trip 
generation (i.e. volumes); types of traffic, access location, and design, circulation and parking 
design; street and bridge capacity and, traffic operations at nearby intersections and access 
points. Efforts shall be made to ensure that multiple transportation modes are safely and 
effectively accommodated in an effort to provide alternate modes of access and alleviate vehicular 
traffic congestion.  

 
The conversion of a limited portion of the building to material recycling shall not impact site traffic. 
 
4. Impact on Public Services. The proposed Special Use shall be adequately served by essential public 

facilities and services, such as: streets, pedestrian or bicycle facilities, police and fire protection, 
drainage systems, refuse disposal, water and sewage facilities, and schools. Such services shall be 
provided and accommodated without an unreasonable public burden.  

 
There should not be any additional impact on other public services, such as police or utilities, beyond 
what would normally be experienced for other uses in the district.  
 
5. Compliance with Zoning Ordinance Standards. The proposed Special Use shall be designed, 

constructed, operated and maintained to meet the stated intent of the zoning districts and shall 
comply with all applicable ordinance standards. 



Material Recovery Facility 
March 6, 2013 

7 

 
The site complies with all zoning ordinance standards.   
 
The Planning Commission is also required to generally consider the following for any special use 
application:  
 
1. The nature and character of the activities, processes, materials, equipment, or conditions of 

operation; either specifically or typically associated with the use.  
 
With the removal of outdoor storage, the proposed use is permissible. 
 
2. Vehicular circulation and parking areas.  
 
No change to parking areas is proposed.  Additional consideration is needed with regard to truck 
circulation at the southeast corner of the property. 
 
3. Outdoor activity, storage and work areas.  
 
The special requirements (Section 6.17) related to material recovery facilities have been met.   
 
4. Hours of operation.  
 
The addition of the indoor material recovery area will not impact the existing businesses current hours 
of operation. 
 
5. Production of traffic, noise vibration, smoke, fumes odors, dust, glare and light.  
 
We do not anticipate any additional impact in this regard. 
 
Items to be addressed: None.  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Provided that the applicant can confirm that there is no outdoor storage or bins to be located in the 
rear of the site, we find that the proposed improvements to the site for a material recovery facility will 
clean up the site and reduce impacts upon surrounding properties.   
 

 
 
 
 
225-02-1307 







  PC 2013.03.12 
  Agenda Item # 8 
 

 
 
 
 
DATE: March 8, 2013 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING - SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 

 (File Number SU 399) – Proposed Detroit Meeting Room, North of Square Lake 
 and I-75 Expressway, East of Adams, Section 6, Currently Zoned R1-A (One 
 Family Residential) District 

 
The petitioner Detroit Meeting Room submitted the above referenced Special Use Approval and 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval application for a 3,000 square foot worship facility.   
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the application.  CWA prepared the report with input from various City 
departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and Fire.  City Management 
supports the findings of fact contained in the report and recommends approval of the project, as 
noted. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ SU 399 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU 399  Detroit Meeting Room  Sec 06\SU 399 PC Memo 03 12 2013.docx 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 
PUBLIC HEARING - SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File 
Number SU 399) – Proposed Detroit Meeting Room, North of Square Lake and I-75 
Expressway, East of Adams, Section 6, Currently Zoned R1-A (One Family Residential) 
District 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-03- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
Proposed Detroit Meeting Room, North of Square Lake and I-75 Expressway, East of 
Adams, Section 6, Currently Zoned R1-A (One Family Residential) District, be granted, 
subject to the following: 
 

1. Indicate grading limit north of parking lot. 
2. Adjust parking lot dimensions.  
3. Consider landbank parking. 
4. Install bicycle parking.   
5. Clarify the eight (8) trees within and along the exterior of parking lot.  
6. Remove the landscape feature from the Square Lake right-of-way. 
7. Relocate the light that is in the Square Lake public right-of-way. 
8. Provide the proposed days and hours of operation of the facility. 

 
Yes: 
No: 
Absent: 
 
MOTION CARRIED / FAILED 
 
 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU 399  Detroit Meeting Room  Sec 06\Proposed Resolution SU 399 2013 03 12.doc 



Detroit Meeting Room, SU 399

Legend

1: 4,353

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

3630726 726Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

2/21/2013



Detroit Meeting Room, SU 399

Legend

1: 5,761

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

4800960 960Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

2/21/2013

Form Based Zoning (Current)
(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(CF) Community Facilities District

(EP) Environmental Protection District

(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)

(MRF) Maple Road (Form Based)

(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)

(CB) Community Business

(GB) General Business

(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District

(O) Office Building District

(OM) Office Mixed Use

(P) Vehicular Parking District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(RT) One Family Attached Residential District

(MR) Multi-Family Residential

(MHP) Manufactured Housing

(UR) Urban Residential

(RC) Research Center District

(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales



 

  

605 S. Main Street, Ste. 1 
Ann Arbor, MI  48104 
 
(734) 662-2200 
(734) 662-1935 Fax 

 
Date:  March 7, 2013 

 

Preliminary Site Plan and Special Use Review 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
 
Applicant: Moiseev/Gordan Associates 
 
Project Name: Alderbrook Meeting Room 
 
Plan Date: February 6, 2013 
 
Location: North Side of W. Square Lake Road between Adams + Beach 

Roads.   
 
Zoning: R-1A, One-Family Residential 
 
Action Requested: Preliminary Site Plan and Special Use Approval 
 
Required Information: Deficiencies noted 
 
 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
We received a site plan and accompanying documents for a proposed 3,000 sq/ft meeting hall to be 
located on the north side of W. Square Lake Road between Adams and Beach Roads. In the Zoning 
Ordinance, a meeting hall is considered a place of worship. The project description on the cover sheet 
notes a meeting hall and private school; however the applicant is not proposing a school.  The 5.4 acre 
site (3 parcels) is currently vacant and is zoned R-1A, One-Family Residential.   The parcel is uniquely 
shaped and heavily wooded.  Furthermore, there is a significant grade change between Square Lake 
Road and the site.  Places of worship are listed as special land uses in the R-1A zoning district. 
 
 
 
 
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
2  P a g e  

Location of Subject Property: 
 
The property is located on the north side W. Square Lake Road between Adams and Beach Roads, 
adjacent to I-75.  
 

 
 
 
Size of Subject Property: 
Three (3) parcels: 233,218 sq/ft (5.124 acres) 
 
Proposed Uses of Subject Parcel: 
The applicant is proposing a 3,000 sq/ft meeting hall.    
 
 

Square Lake Road 

I-75 
 

Site  
 
Approximate area of 
development 
(building, parking lot, 
and drive).  



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
3  P a g e  

Current Use of Subject Property: 
Vacant 
 
Current Zoning: 
The property is currently zoned R-1A, One-Family Residential.  
 

Direction Zoning Use 
North  R-1A, One-Family Residential Residential 
South R-1A, One-Family Residential Vacant / I-75 
East R-1A, One-Family Residential Residential 
West R-1A, One-Family Residential I-75  
 
AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, SETBACKS 
 
Sections 4.14.C and 6.21 establish the dimensional requirements for both the R-1A District, and the 
specific use standards for Places of Worship.  The requirements and the proposed dimensions are as 
follows: 
 

 
1.  Section 6.21.E requires a 50-foot setback from front, side, and rear property lines for a Place of 
Worship.   
 
2.  Section 4.06 D.2, states, whenever a lot or parcel abuts I-75, the yard setback abutting the right-of-
way of I-75 shall not be less than seventy-five (75) feet.  In this case, the southwestern property line of 
the subject parcel abuts the I-75 right-of-way.   
 
The proposed site plan meets all area and setback provisions of the R-1A and Place of Worship specific 
use standards.   
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
 

 Required1: Provided: Compliance 
Minimum Lot Area 15,000 sq/ft (with sewers) 

30,000 (without sewers) 
+200,000 sq/ft  Complies 

Front (Square Lake Road) 50 feet  minimum setback 50 feet Complies 

Side (east) 50 feet  minimum setback 50 feet Complies 

Side (south) 75 feet  minimum setback2 75 feet Complies 

Rear (north) 50 feet  minimum setback 50 feet Complies 

Building Height Maximum 2 ½  stories, 30 
feet 

Approx. 14 feet (not 
provided, scaled 
measurement) 

Complies 

Maximum Building 
Coverage 

30% 1.3% (building only) 
13.9% (with parking) 

Complies 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
4  P a g e  

BUILDING ARRANGEMENT 
 
The proposed building is oriented towards the western portion of the site and accessed via a single drive 
from W. Square Lake Road.  Parking and landscape areas are also denoted on the site plan.  Due to 
setbacks, the edge of development will maintain a 50-foot separation from the northern property line, 
which is adjacent to single-family residential.   The applicant has not submitted a grading plan that 
demarks the edge of earth movement and tree removal.  However, the Landscape Plan shows a fence 
line to delineate the construction area.  If the applicant were to limit grading to a few feet beyond the 
northern edge of the parking lot, the existing tree buffer should be sufficient to provide adequate 
screening.   
 
 Items to be Addressed: Confirm that the line on Landscape Plan indicates the edge of grading.   
 
PARKING 
 
Section 13.06.G of the Zoning Ordinance requires: 
 
 Required Provided 
Places of Assembly: 
1 space for each 3 seats or 6 feet 
of pews in the main unit of 
worship. 

180 seats/3 = 60 spaces 
 
 
 
 

180 seats/3 = 60 spaces 

   
Barrier Free 3 3 
Bicycle Parking 2 0 
Loading 0 0 
Total 60 spaces 60 spaces 
 
The parking lot stall length of some of the parking spaces is deficient.  Unless spaces overhang a 7-foot 
wide sidewalk, a 19-foot parking stall length is required.   Parking lot dimensions must be adjusted.   
 
In discussions with the applicant, they indicted that based on the congregation, the required 60 parking 
spaces will not be needed.  In order to both eliminate unnecessary costs for the applicant, reduce 
impervious surface, and provide a greater buffer to adjacent properties, the applicant may, with 
Planning Commission approval, landbank some of the required parking.  Landbanked parking is parking 
that is shown on the site plan but not constructed.  Such parking may be installed in the future if 
necessary.  If landbanking is considered, the northern most parking aisle should be removed to provide 
additional setbacks to the adjacent residential.    
 
The applicant shall install bicycle parking.   
   
Items to be Addressed: 1). Parking lot dimensions must be adjusted; 2). Consider landbank parking; and 
3). Install bicycle parking.   
 
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
5  P a g e  

SITE ACCESS AND CIRCULATION 
 
Vehicular access and Circulation 
 
The site will be accessed via a single drive from W. Square Lake Road.  The Engineering Department 
notes that the final engineering plans should include a check of sight distance along Square Lake Road 
for the driveway.  Vision is somewhat obstructed due to the curve in proximity to the I-75 over Square 
Lake structure. 
 
Pedestrian access:  
 
There is currently a sidewalk along this stretch Square Lake Road, and the site plan demonstrates an 
internal pathway connection from the proposed building along the southern edge of the parking lot to 
the existing sidewalk.   Due to changes in grade, final engineering will need to confirm that sidewalk is 
ADA compatible.   
  
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
LANDSCAPING 

 
The applicant has provided a landscape plan in accordance with Article 13 of the Ordinance:  
 

 Required: Provided: Compliance: 
Screening Between Land Uses:  The 
Ordinance requires that Places of Worship 
provide Alternative 1 or 2 screening 
options when contiguous to Residential 
Uses. 

1 narrow 
evergreen tree 
per 3 lineal 
feet OR 1 large 
evergreen tree 
per 10 lineal 
feet. 

Potential 50-foot 
tree buffer 

If the applicant 
were to limit 
grading to a few 
feet beyond the 
northern edge of 
the parking lot 
edge the existing 
tree buffer 
should be 
sufficient to 
provide adequate 
screening.   
 

Street Trees: The Ordinance requires that 
the greenbelt shall be landscaped with a 
minimum of one (1) deciduous tree for 
every thirty (30) lineal feet, or fraction 
thereof, of frontage abutting a public road 
right-of-way.   

200 feet = 7 
trees 

Two (2) additional 
trees plus existing 
protected trees. 
 

Complies  
 

Site landscaping: A minimum of twenty 
percent (20%) of the site area shall be 
comprised of landscape material. 

20% Site exceeds 20% 
landscaping/natural 
area. 

Complies 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
6  P a g e  

Parking Lot Landscaping:  1 tree for every 
8 parking spaces.  Trees may be located 
adjacent to parking lot with planning 
commission approval.   

Required 60 
spaces = 8 
trees 

The applicant 
indicates eight (8) 
trees within and 
along exterior of 
parking lot; 
however it is 
unclear if these are 
preserved trees or 
new trees.  

Clarify trees 
shown on plan 

Parking Lot Screening from ROW:  Parking 
lots that front on a public roadway shall 
be screened by a landscaped berm at least 
3 feet in height along the perimeter of the 
road right-of-way. 

3-foot berm or 
tree screen 

Providing thirty 
(30) arborvitae. 

Compliant 

 
The site plan demonstrates a landscaping feature at the driveway entrance.  The landscape feature 
called out along the drive is to be on private property and not in the Square Lake right-of-way. 
 
Trash Enclosure: 
 
The applicant indicates that trash will stored inside building until collection day.   
 
Items to be Addressed: 1). Indicate grading limit north of parking lot; 2). Clarify the eight (8) trees within 
and along the exterior of parking lot; and 3). Remove the landscape feature from the Square Lake right-
of-way 
 
PHOTOMETRICS 
 
The applicant is proposing two (2) poles with single lights along the entrance drive, two (2) poles with 
double lights interior to the parking lot; and two (2) building fixture lights.   One (1) of the lights along 
the entrance drive is located within the Square Lake public right-of-way.  This pole needs to be 
relocated.   
  
Items to be Addressed:  Relocate the light that is in the Square Lake public right-of-way.  
 
FLOOR PLANS and ELEVATIONS  
 
The applicant has submitted floor plans and elevations.  The building exterior consists of vinyl siding 
with wood trim.  The north elevation is characterized by a 14-foot overhang with supporting columns.  
The building has a residential appearance that is consistent with the residential uses in the surrounding 
area.   
 
Items to be Addressed: None 
 
SPECIAL USE  
 
In the R-1A District, both Places of Worship are permitted as a special use. For any special use, according 
to Section 9.02.D, the Planning Commission shall “…review the request, supplementary materials either 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
7  P a g e  

in support or opposition thereto, as well as the Planning Department’s report, at a Public Hearing 
established for that purpose, and shall either grant or deny the request, table action on the request, or 
grant the request subject to specific conditions.” 
 
Use Standards 
 
1. All religious activities shall take place in a fully enclosed building except as may be approved by the 

City. 
 
All proposed religious activities will take place within the building.   
 
2. Facilities incidental to the main religious sanctuary must be used for church, worship, or religious 

education purposes, in a manner which is consistent with residential zoning and compatible with 
adjacent residential property.  

 
No other incidental facilities are proposed. 
 
3. The site shall have frontage on and primary access to a major or minor arterial. 
 
Square Lake Road is a major arterial.  
 
4. Buildings of greater than the maximum height allowed in the District in which a place of worship is 

located, may be allowed provided that the front, side and rear yards are increased one (1) foot for 
each foot of building height which exceeds the maximum height allowed. 

 
The 14-foot building height complies with the R1-A zoning district.  
 
5. Front, side and rear yard setbacks shall be a minimum of fifty (50) feet. 
 
The applicant meets the 50-foot setback. 
 
6. Parking shall not be permitted in the required yards adjacent to any public street or adjacent to any 

land zoned for residential purposes, other than that which is developed or committed for uses 
other than the construction of residential dwellings. Such yards shall be maintained as landscaped 
open space. 

 
Parking is located outside all required yards.   
 
7. Traffic from events, including church worship services and other large assemblies, shall be 

controlled so as not to create congestion or unreasonable delays on the public street. 
 
The Engineering Department notes that the final engineering plans should include a check of sight 
distance along Square Lake Road for the driveway.  Vision is somewhat obstructed due to the curve in 
proximity to the I-75 over Square Lake structure. 
 
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
8  P a g e  

Standards of Approval 
 
Section 9.03 states that before approving any requests for Special Use Approval, the Planning 
Commission shall consider: 
 
1. Compatibility with Adjacent Uses. The Special Use shall be designed and constructed in a manner 

harmonious with the character of adjacent property and the surrounding area. In determining 
whether a Special Use will be harmonious and not create a significant detrimental impact, as 
compared to the impacts of permitted uses.  

 
The proposed use has provided the required setback from residential uses (along the north property 
line).  Provided that the applicant can limit grading to a few feet beyond the northern edge of the 
parking lot the existing tree buffer should be sufficient to provide adequate screening and buffering.  
If adequate buffering and screening can be provided, the proposed use will not have any detrimental 
impact to the surrounding residential uses. 
 
2. Compatibility with the Master Plan. The proposed Special Use shall be compatible and in accordance 

with the goals and objectives of the City of Troy Master Plan and any associated sub-area and 
corridor plans.  

 
The use is common to residential areas along major thoroughfares, and complies with the Master 
Plan. 
 
3. Traffic Impact. The proposed Special Use shall be located and designed in a manner which will 

minimize the impact of traffic, taking into consideration: pedestrian access and safety; vehicle trip 
generation (i.e. volumes); types of traffic, access location, and design, circulation and parking design; 
street and bridge capacity and, traffic operations at nearby intersections and access points. Efforts 
shall be made to ensure that multiple transportation modes are safely and effectively accommodated 
in an effort to provide alternate modes of access and alleviate vehicular traffic congestion.  

  
Provided that a safe sight distance along Square Lake Road for the driveway can be confirmed, traffic 
along Square Lake and in the surrounding area should not be impacted.   
 
4. Impact on Public Services. The proposed Special Use shall be adequately served by essential public 

facilities and services, such as: streets, pedestrian or bicycle facilities, police and fire protection, 
drainage systems, refuse disposal, water and sewage facilities, and schools. Such services shall be 
provided and accommodated without an unreasonable public burden.  

 
The proposed use should not cause additional impact on other public services, such as police or 
utilities, beyond what would normally be experienced for other uses in the district.  
 
5. Compliance with Zoning Ordinance Standards. The proposed Special Use shall be designed, 

constructed, operated and maintained to meet the stated intent of the zoning districts and shall 
comply with all applicable ordinance standards.  

 
Outside the aforementioned issues, the site complies with all zoning ordinance standards.   
 
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
9  P a g e  

The Planning Commission is also required to generally consider the following for any special use 
application:  
 
1. The nature and character of the activities, processes, materials, equipment, or conditions of operation; 

either specifically or typically associated with the use.  
 
See above.  Provided site planning issues are addressed the proposed use may be permissible in the 
proposed location. 
 
2. Vehicular circulation and parking areas.  
 
Parking lot dimensions must be adjusted.   
    
3. Outdoor activity, storage and work areas.  
 
N/A. 
 
4. Hours of operation.  
 
The applicant should provide the proposed days and hours of operation of the facility. 
 
5. Production of traffic, noise vibration, smoke, fumes odors, dust, glare and light.  
 
We do not anticipate any additional impact after initial construction in this regard. 
 
Items to be addressed: Address Ordinance compliance issues noted herein. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Overall we find that due to the limited size of the facility, the location of the use is appropriate.  The 
applicant has met the special use and Place of Workshop specific use standards.  However due to the 
number outstanding items we recommend that the applicant address the following issues prior to 
Planning Commission approval:  
 

1. Indicate grading limit north of parking lot. 
2. Adjust parking lot dimensions.  
3. Consider landbank parking. 
4. Install bicycle parking.   
5. Clarify the eight (8) trees within and along the exterior of parking lot.  
6. Remove the landscape feature from the Square Lake right-of-way. 
7. Relocate the light that is in the Square Lake public right-of-way. 
8. Provide the proposed days and hours of operation of the facility. 

 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
10  P a g e  

Sincerely,  

      
#225-02-1303 



    

 

 
 
January 11, 2013 
 
 
City of Troy 
Planning Commission 
500 W. Big Beaver Rd. 
Troy, MI 48084 
 
 
Re: Alderbrook School and Meeting Room 
Project Number: 12464 
 
We are requesting a Special Land Use Approval of the above-referenced project.   
 
The proposed project, a private school and religious meeting room, are both uses in accordance with the R1-A 
zoning district and the city Master Plan, requiring only a Special Land Use Approval.  
 
The proposed site is located on a major street and will not burden neighboring residential streets with additional 
traffic. The site has access to existing water and sewer lines.  The proposed development at completion will only 
cover 22.5% of the site, minimizing its impact within the property lines and beyond. 

 
We thank you for consideration of our proposal. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 

 

Michael J. Gordon, RA 

















  PC 2013.03.12 
  Agenda Item # 9 
 

 
 
 
 
DATE: March 8, 2013 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING - SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 

 (File Number SU 402) – Proposed Gypsum Supply Company, East side of John R, 
 North of Fourteen Mile Road (651 Robbins), Section 36, Currently Zoned IB 
 (Integrated Industrial and Business) District 

 
The petitioner Gypsum Supply Company submitted the above referenced Special Use Approval 
and Preliminary Site Plan Approval application for a proposed outdoor storage area for an 
existing industrial facility.   
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the application.  CWA prepared the report with input from various City 
departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and Fire.  City Management 
supports the findings of fact contained in the report and recommends approval of the project, as 
noted. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ SU 402 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU 402  Gypsum Supply Company Section 36\PC Memo 03 12 2013.docx 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 
PUBLIC HEARING - SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File 
Number SU 402) – Proposed Gypsum Supply Company, East side of John R, North of 
Fourteen Mile Road (651 Robbins), Section 36, Currently Zoned IB  (Integrated Industrial and 
Business) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-03- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
Proposed Gypsum Supply Company, East side of John R, North of Fourteen Mile Road 
(651 Robbins), Section 36, Currently Zoned IB  (Integrated Industrial and Business) District, 
be granted, subject to the following: 
 

1. Provide additional information related to the types of materials to be stored 
outdoors. 

2. Provide Fire Department with Knox Box on gate. 
3. Indicate on the site plan a general storage layout plan. 
4. Provide number of employees on largest shift to provide accurate required parking 

calculation. 
5. Add additional parking on site, reconfigure outdoor storage location to provide 

adequate parking, or request a deviation from parking standards. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
Absent: 
 
MOTION CARRIED / FAILED 
 
 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU 402  Gypsum Supply Company Section 36\Proposed Resolution 2013 03 12.doc 



651 Robbins

Legend

1: 4,118

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

3430686 686Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

2/18/2013



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

444

1:

Feet4440 222



 
 
 

 Date:  February 24, 2012 
 

Special Use Review 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
 
Applicant: Horizon Engineering 
 
Project Name: Gypsum Supply Company 
 
Plan Date: February 5, 2013 
 
Location: 651 Robbins Dr. – north and immediately east of Elliot Ave. 

between John R and Dequindre  
 
Zoning: IB, Integrated Business District 
 
Action Requested: Special Use Approval 
 
Required Information: Deficiencies noted 
 
 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
We are in receipt of a special land use application which includes a site plan demonstrating both 
existing and proposed site conditions related to the addition of an outdoor storage area.   
 
The applicant is proposing to utilize a portion of their existing parking area as an outdoor storage area.  
The site is located at 651 Robbins Drive at the existing Gypsum Supply Company.  The site is zoned IB, 
Integrated Business District.  Outdoor storage facilities are listed as a special use in the IB district. 
 
The applicant indicates that they propose to store building framing materials (steel studs, etc), however 
this should be confirmed and/or the applicant should provide additional information related to the 
types of materials to be stored outdoors. 
 



Gypsum Supply Company 
February 25, 2013 

2 

 
 

Figure 1. – Aerial Photograph 

 
 

 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the north cul-de-sac of Robbins Drive, east of Elliot Avenue between John R 
and Dequindre. 
 
Size of Subject Property: 
The parcel is 2.618 acres in area. 
 
Proposed Uses of Subject Parcel: 
The applicant proposes to modify a portion of the existing northern parking area as outdoor storage.    
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The subject property currently maintains a 43,078 s.f. industrial building that contains an office/sales 
area (11,454 s.f.) and warehouse/storage area (31,624 s.f.).   
 
Current Zoning: 
The property is zoned IB, Integrated Business District.  
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels and Current Land Use:  
 
 Zoning  Use 
North MR, Multi-Family Residential Canterbury Square Apartments 
South  IB, Integrated Business District Robbins Executive Park 

Outdoor Storage 
Yard 



Gypsum Supply Company 
February 25, 2013 

3 

East IB, Integrated Business District Robbins Executive Park 
West CB, Community Business (across Elliot Ave.) Home Goods store 

GB, General Business District Chuck E. Cheese 
 
 
NATURAL RESOURCES 
 
The existing site currently is improved with a 43,078 s.f. Gypsum Supply Company industrial building 
and other site improvements.  No natural features exist; therefore the proposed site improvements will 
not impact any protected natural features. 
  
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 

BUILDING LOCATION / SITE ARRANGEMENT / CIRCULATION 
 

The existing building is located at the center of the site, with the parking in the rear (north) and side 
(east).  The proposed outdoor storage area will be located within a portion of the northern parking 
area, and will be enclosed by the existing concrete screen wall along the north property line and 
proposed 6-foot chain-link fencing with vinyl slats.   There are two proposed gates; one along the 
southern and one along the eastern fence line.   
 
The outdoor storage yard fence 
encloses a fire hydrant.  The Fire 
Department notes that the 
applicant will need to put a Knox 
Box on the fence gate.  
Furthermore, the Fire 
Department notes that no 
material can block access to the 
fire hydrant.   
 
In order to ensure proper 
circulation and ensure that the 
fire hydrant is accessible, the 
applicant should indicate on the 
site plan a general storage layout plan.    
 
Items to be Addressed: 1). Provide Fire Department with Knox Box on gate; and 2). Indicate on the site 
plan a general storage layout plan 
 
AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, SETBACKS 
 
Required and Provided Dimensions: 
Section 4.15.C establishes the dimensional requirements for the IB District.  The layout of the site, 
excepting the northern parking area will not be impacted by the addition of the outdoor storage area.  
The requirements and the proposed dimensions are as follows: 

Approximate 
hydrant location 



Gypsum Supply Company 
February 25, 2013 

4 

 

 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 

PARKING 
 
Parking: 
 
Currently, 70 parking spaces are provided along the east and north property lines.  The area proposed 
to house the outdoor storage area would eliminate 38 existing parking spaces north of the existing 
building. 
 

 Required Provided 
Office = 1 space per 550 s.f. (11,454) – 21 

spaces 
 

11,454 / 550 = 21 spaces 
 
 
 

32 spaces 
Warehouse = 1 space per 1,500 s.f. + 1 

space for each employee on largest shift   
31,624 / 1,500 = 21 spaces 

Total  42 spaces + employees on largest shift 
required 

 
The elimination of parking spaces to accommodate the outdoor storage area reduces the site’s available 
parking spaces.  The site is deficient in the required number as set forth in Table 13.06 A of the Zoning 
Ordinance.   
 
Section 13.06 F.2. provides that the Planning Commission may grant deviations from off-street parking 
requirements based upon a finding that such deviations will provide sufficient number of spaces to 
accommodate the use in question.  The applicant is required to specifically request a deviation from the 
standards of the Ordinance for review. 
 

 Required: Provided: Compliance: 

Front (east/Robbins) 30 feet 51.8 feet (Robbins) / 
80.7 feet (east property 

line) 

Complies 

Rear (north) 20 foot  69.5 feet Complies 

Front (Elliot) 30 feet  80.8 feet Complies 

Side (south) 10 feet   23.1 feet Complies 

Building Height Maximum 4 stories, 
50 feet 

1 story, 23 feet Complies 

Maximum Percent Lot Area 
Covered by Buildings 

40% 37.8% Complies 



Gypsum Supply Company 
February 25, 2013 

5 

Items to be Addressed: 1) Provide number of employees on largest shift to provide accurate required 
parking calculation; and 2) Add additional parking on site, reconfigure outdoor storage location to 
provide adequate parking, or request a deviation from parking standards. 
 
SITE ACCESS  
 
Vehicular access: 
The site will be accessed via the existing driveway from Robbins Drive.  No modifications regarding site 
access are proposed. 
  
Pedestrian access:  
There are no existing public sidewalks along Robbins Drive. 
 
Items to be Addressed: None.    
 
LIGHTING 
 
No additional lighting is proposed as part of the proposed outdoor storage area.   If lighting is proposed, 
such lighting shall comply with 13.05 of the Zoning Ordinance.   
  
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
LANDSCAPING 
 
A landscaping plan has not been provided.  The proposed outdoor storage area will not impact any 
existing landscaping, and it doesn’t appear that any additional landscaping is required or proposed. 
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
SPECIAL USE  
 
In the IB District, outdoor storage facilities are permitted as a special use. For any special use, according 
to Section 9.02.D, the Planning Commission shall “…review the request, supplementary materials either 
in support or opposition thereto, as well as the Planning Department’s report, at a Public Hearing 
established for that purpose, and shall either grant or deny the request, table action on the request, or 
grant the request subject to specific conditions.” 
 
Use Standards 
 
Section 6.08 provides specific use requirements for outdoor storage facilities.  Specifically, outdoor 
storage facilities are required to be an accessory to the primary use of the property, and shall not be 
located in any front yard.  Furthermore, outdoor storage facilities are required to be enclosed by an 
opaque fence up to eight (8) feet in height and/or landscape screening meeting the standards set forth 
in Section 13.02 B. 
 
The site plan provided demonstrates that the outdoor storage area will be located in the northwest 
corner of the property within the current northern parking area.  The area will be screened to the north 



Gypsum Supply Company 
February 25, 2013 

6 

by the existing concrete screening wall along the northern property line.  In addition, a 6-foot chain-link 
fence with vinyl slats for opacity will be installed along the east, west and south boundaries of the 
outdoor storage area.     The applicant meets Section 6.08 of the ordinance.  
 
Standards of Approval 
 
Section 9.03 states that before approving any requests for Special Use Approval, the Planning 
Commission shall consider: 
 
1. Compatibility with Adjacent Uses. The Special Use shall be designed and constructed in a manner 

harmonious with the character of adjacent property and the surrounding area. In determining 
whether a Special Use will be harmonious and not create a significant detrimental impact, as 
compared to the impacts of permitted uses. The proposed outdoor storage area will immediately 
border a multi-family residential area to the north.  The applicant should provide a detail listing of 
the types of materials to be stored and layout plan to ensure the adjacent residential use will not 
be impacted. 

 
2. Compatibility with the Master Plan. The proposed Special Use shall be compatible and in accordance 

with the goals and objectives of the City of Troy Master Plan and any associated sub-area and 
corridor plans. The Master Plan designates the subject site and the surrounding area as 21st 
Century Industrial.  The 21st Century Industrial future land use classification encourages a variety 
of industrial uses; specifically, light industrial uses with no outdoor storage or external nuisances 
are especially encouraged.  However, because this is an existing use, and provided the applicant 
can make the noted site plan changes, the proposed use can be compatible with the City of Troy 
Master Plan.   

 
3. Traffic Impact. The proposed Special Use shall be located and designed in a manner which will 

minimize the impact of traffic, taking into consideration: pedestrian access and safety; vehicle trip 
generation (i.e. volumes); types of traffic, access location, and design, circulation and parking design; 
street and bridge capacity and, traffic operations at nearby intersections and access points. Efforts 
shall be made to ensure that multiple transportation modes are safely and effectively accommodated 
in an effort to provide alternate modes of access and alleviate vehicular traffic congestion. The 
addition of an outdoor storage area within the existing development site would not require 
additional vehicular trips. 

 
4. Impact on Public Services. The proposed Special Use shall be adequately served by essential public 

facilities and services, such as: streets, pedestrian or bicycle facilities, police and fire protection, 
drainage systems, refuse disposal, water and sewage facilities, and schools. Such services shall be 
provided and accommodated without an unreasonable public burden. We do not expect any 
additional impact on other public services, such as police or utilities, beyond what would normally 
be experienced for other uses in the district.  

 
5. Compliance with Zoning Ordinance Standards. The proposed Special Use shall be designed, 

constructed, operated and maintained to meet the stated intent of the zoning districts and shall 
comply with all applicable ordinance standards. Several items need to be addressed, as noted 
herein, to meet this requirement. 

 



Gypsum Supply Company 
February 25, 2013 

7 

The Planning Commission is also required to generally consider the following for any special use 
application:  
 
1. The nature and character of the activities, processes, materials, equipment, or conditions of 

operation; either specifically or typically associated with the use. See above.  We believe that with 
conditions, the proposed use may be permissible. 

 
2. Vehicular circulation and parking areas. A general layout plan will ensure that safe fire access and 

circulation is provided.  In addition, due to the elimination of parking spaces to accommodate the 
outdoor storage area, on-site parking will need to be re-evaluated. 

 
3. Outdoor activity, storage and work areas. The special requirements (Section 6.08) related to outdoor 

storage facilities have been met.   
 
4. Hours of operation. The addition of the outdoor storage area will not impact the existing businesses 

current hours of operation. 
 
5. Production of traffic, noise vibration, smoke, fumes odors, dust, glare and light. We do not anticipate 

any additional impact in this regard. 
 
Items to be addressed: Address Ordinance compliance issues noted herein. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Prior to the granting of the special use request and preliminary site plan application, we recommend 
that the applicant resubmit the following items: 
 

1. Provide additional information related to the types of materials to be stored outdoors. 
2. Provide Fire Department with Knox Box on gate. 
3. Indicate on the site plan a general storage layout plan. 
4. Provide number of employees on largest shift to provide accurate required parking calculation. 
5. Add additional parking on site, reconfigure outdoor storage location to provide adequate 

parking, or request a deviation from parking standards. 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 



Gypsum Supply Company 
February 25, 2013 

8 

 
225-02-1307 



  P.O. Box 182158 
Shelby Twp., MI 48318 

  Phone 586.453.8097 
Fax 586.580.0053 

 

 
    

 
 
February 5, 2013 
 
 
 
Planning Department 
City of Troy 
500 West Big Beaver Road 
Troy, Michigan 48084 
 
Re: Special Use Request for Outdoor Storage 
 #651 Robbins Drive, “Gypsum Supply Co.” 

Section 36, City of Troy  
 
Dear City of Troy Planning Department: 
 
Attached to this letter please find the following items: 
 

 One (1) Special Use Request Application. 
 One (1) Special Use Approval Initial Submittal Checklist. 
 One (1) Certified Existing Conditions (Boundary) Survey. 
 Two (2) Site Plans. 
 One (1) CD containing PDF copies of the above items. 
 Two (2) checks ($1,800 Special Use Approval Fee and $1,500 Escrow 

Fee). 
 
These materials are being submitted for your review pursuant to placement on a 
Planning Commission agenda for a Special Use Request to allow Outdoor 
Storage for Gypsum Supply Co. 
 
The subject property is located at #651 Robbins Drive and consists of an existing 
43,078 square-foot industrial building, a portion of which is office/sales area and 
the majority being warehouse/storage area.  The property is located in the 
Integrated Industrial and Business District (IB). 
 
The Applicant, Gypsum Supply Co., desires to designate a portion of the property 
for purposes of Outdoor Storage, which is permissible within the IB district 
subject to Special Use Approval.  Said storage area is to be located across a 
portion of the paved lot at the northwest corner of the property as indicated on 
the Site Plan.   
 
 



 
Page 2 of 2 

February 5, 2013 
Planning Department, City of Troy 
Re:  Special Use Request for #651 Robbins Drive 
 
 
 
All of the conditions of Ordinance Section 6.08 (Contractor’s Yard/Outdoor 
Storage Facilities) are met.  A concrete screen wall exists along the northerly 
boundary of the property, and the remaining sides of the Outdoor Storage area 
shall be enclosed with chain link fence including vinyl slats for opaqueness.  
Materials stored within the enclosure are expected to consist of building framing 
materials (steel studs, etc.).  These materials are generally stacked at ground 
level on pallets and their height shall not exceed the height of the screen wall or 
fence enclosure. 
 
We feel that the proposed Special Use Request is perfectly compatible with the 
zoning district and use of the property and is consistent with other storage yards 
located elsewhere within the City.   
 
Your consideration of our request is greatly appreciated.  Please do not hesitate 
to contact me if you have any questions or concerns. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Nathan P. Robinson, P.E. 
President 
nrobinson@horizoneng.net 
 
cc.: Ben Rouster, Gypsum Supply Co. 
 
attachments 







  PC 2013.03.12 
  Agenda Item # 10 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
DATE: March 8, 2013 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 245) – Sober 

Living Facilities 
 
 
An organization, Great Lakes Recovery Community, is interested in using a property in Troy 
as a sober living facility.  The use is presently not permitted in the City of Troy.   The 
Planning Commission identified the need for this type of facility and initiated the process to 
amend the Zoning Ordinance to permit this use.  A text amendment is applicable to all 
similarly-zoned properties in Troy. 
 
To assist the Planning Commission in making an informed decision, members were invited 
to tour a similar operating facility in Shelby Township on January 17.  The Planning 
Commission discussed this issue conceptually at the January 22, 2013 Special/Study 
meeting and then again at the February 12, 2013 Regular meeting. 
 
The attached memo prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. summarizes the item 
and includes proposed Zoning Ordinance provisions.  In an effort to keep this item moving 
forward, a Public Hearing was scheduled for this item on March 26, 2013. 
 
Please be prepared to discuss this matter at the March 12, 2013 Planning Commission 
Regular meeting. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Report prepared by CWA 
2. Minutes from February 12, 2013 Planning Commission Regular meeting (excerpt) 

 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 245 Recovery Centers\PC Memo 03 12 2013.doc 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 12, 2013 
   
 
 
9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 245) – Sober 

Living Facility 
 
Mr. Carlisle presented a report on this item, including draft provisions regulating 
sober living facilities. 
 
There was general discussion on the item. 
 
David Lord, representative from Great Lakes Recovery Community, addressed 
questions related to sober living facilities. 
 
Planning Commission determined that it would be appropriate to limit sober living 
facilities to adults, 18 years of age and above. 
 
Staff informed Planning Commission next steps would be to present a revised 
draft based on feedback. 

 



 

  

605 S. Main Street, Ste. 1 
Ann Arbor, MI  48104 
 
(734) 662-2200 
(734) 662-1935 Fax 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: R. Brent Savidant, AICP, Planning Director 
 
FROM: Ben Carlisle, AICP 
 
DATE: March 8, 2013 
 
RE: Sober Living Zoning Ordinance Amendments  
 
 
On February 12, the Planning Commission first considered zoning language regarding sober living 
facilities.  The revised language below considers the comprehensive discussion between staff and the 
Planning Commission, as well as input from a Sober Living facility provider.  Changes to the zoning 
ordinance language since the February 12 consideration is either underlined or struckthrough 
accordingly.   
 
Please remember that since persons recovering from alcohol and drug addiction are considered to be 
disabled, they have certain protections under the Americans with Disabilities Act and the Federal Fair 
Housing Act.  Thus, any regulation that treats sober living homes less favorably than similar uses may be 
considered exclusionary and difficult to justify.   See our February 6, 2013 memo for more details 
regarding project background and zoning best practices.   
 
If the Planning Commission agrees with the following Zoning Ordinance language, a public hearing will 
be scheduled.   
 

TROY ZONING AMENDMENT: 
 
Based on the direction of the Planning Commission and review of best practices, we recommend adding 
the following definition and zoning provisions:  
 
Definition:  
 

Sober Living Facility Recovery Center:  A temporary residential living arrangement for seven (7) 
or more adult persons leaving an institutional setting recovering from drug or alcohol addiction 
and in need of a supportive living arrangement in order to readjust to living outside the 
institution. These are persons who are receiving therapy and counseling from licensed or certified 
professional staff and trained non-professional or paraprofessional support staff who are 
present when residents are present, to help them recuperate from the effects of drug or alcohol 
addiction.  Recovery center may provide limited supportive services to residents only, including: 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
2  P a g e  

mental health services; clinical rehabilitation services; social services; financial management 
services; legal services; and other similar supportive services.  Residency is limited to a specific 
number of weeks or months, typically 24 months or less.  This definition does not constitute 
halfway houses for those released from prison or a homeless situation. 

 
The intent of the definition is to distinguish between sober living facility and more service-intensive, 
government-licensed housing facilities occupied by residents with a higher level of dependence, and to 
reduce the existing lack of clarity about what constitutes a “legitimate” sober living facility. This 
definition would not include dwelling units occupied by six (6) or less residents, which are covered by 
the standard definition of family, and by-right in single-family residential.   
 
Use Table: 
 

 
Specific Use Provisions: 
 
Recovery Center:  
 

A. Recovery Center serving six (6) persons or less. A Recovery Center serving six (6) persons or less 
shall be considered a single-family use of property.   

B. Recovery Center Adult serving between seven (7) or more adult persons. 

 R1A-
R1E 

RT MR UR MHP CF EP CB GB IB O OM RC PV P 

Recovery 
Center 

S S S S NP NP NP NP NP S NP S NP NP NP 

For Comparison Purposes only  
Senior 
assisted/inde-
pendent 
living 

P P P P NP P NP P P P NP P NP NP NP 

Multiple-
family dwell-
ings (2-8 
stories) 

NP NP P P NP NP NP NP NP P NP NP NP NP NP 

Convalescent 
centers 

NP NP S S NP P NP P P P P P NP NP NP 

Adult foster 
care, family 
home 

P P P P P P NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP 

Adult foster 
care, Small 
group home 

S S S S S S NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP 

Adult foster 
care, large 
group home 

S S S S S S NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP 

Adult foster 
care, con-
gregate 
facility 

S S S S S S NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
3  P a g e  

1. A site plan, prepared in accordance with Article 8 shall be required to be submitted. 
2. All residents must be eighteen (18) years of age or older. 
3. Frontage on either a major or minor arterial street shall be required. 
4. Parking: 1 space for each 1 per bed and (1) off-street parking space per employee 

and/or caregiver at largest shift shall be provided. 
5. Appropriate licenses with the State of Michigan shall be maintained. 
6. The subject parcel shall meet the minimum lot area requirements for the zoning district 

in which it is located provided there is a minimum site area of twenty-five hundred 
(2,500) square feet per adult, excluding employees and/or caregivers.  

7. Facility may include ancillary facilities are allowed such as multi-purpose recreational 
rooms and meeting rooms.  

 
 

 
  
 


	1. ROLL CALL
	2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	FEBRUARY 12, 2013

	4. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	5. SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 400)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Maps (2)
	Planning Consultant Report (pgs 12-15) 
	Meeting Minutes Excerpt
	Site Plan (pgs 16-42)

	6. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 979)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Maps (2)
	Planning Consultant Report (pgs 47-54)
	Meeting Minutes Excerpt
	Site Plan (pgs 56-78) 

	7. PUBLIC HEARING - SPECIAL USE AND  PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 401)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Maps (2)
	Planning Consultant Report
	Site Plan

	8. PUBLIC HEARING - SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 399)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Maps (2)
	Planning Consultant Report
	Correspondence from Petitioner 
	Site Plan (pgs 107-113)  

	9. PUBLIC HEARING - SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 402)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Maps (2)
	Planning Consultant Report
	Correspondence from Petitioner (pgs 126-127)
	Site Plan (pgs 128-129) 

	10. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 245)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Meeting Minutes Excerpt
	Planning Consultant Report


	Notes: 
	Job: 
	Type: OA
	Prefix: [ BR840]
	Height: [42]
	LED Control: [CWL ]
	Coverage / Wattage: [360-26]
	Voltage: [UNIV]
	Finish: [BRP ]
	LED: [NW]
	Options: [ ]
	Options2: [ ]


